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VISION 

To establish and steer the Company towards development of the 

Project Highway, the Four-laning of Shivpuri-Guna Section on 

NH-3 from km 236.000 to Km 332.100 in the State of Madhya 

Pradesh and ensuring the safety and comfort to highway users 

by providing the best of the services 

MISSION 

(i) Constructing through site planning, scheduling of project 

activities, leveling and laying the land, installing systems for 

measuring quality of construction.  

(ii) To use innovative construction techniques for economizing 

the construction and maintenance cost by strictly adhering 

to the efficient planning and vigilant monitoring of the 

project. 

(iii) Ensuring increased usage of highway over the tenure of 

concession by keeping a check on toll rates, enabling plying 

of more and more cars and commercial vehicles on the 

road, revising the toll rates based on effective traffic 

sampling. 

(iv) Curtailing costs and channeling resources into required 

areas. 
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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS 
(7th AGM – 23rd August 2022) 

 

 

Dear Shareholders, 

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all at the 7th Annual General Meeting of your 

Company and present the Annual Report of your Company for the Financial Year (FY) 2021-22. 

The Directors’ Report and Audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 have 

already been provided to all the shareholders. With your permission, I take them as read. 

 

I would like to place before you, few highlights of IrconSGTL. 

 

Your Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary company of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), 

Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated in the year 2015 by IRCON with the intent to 

execute the project of “Four laning of Shivpuri Guna section of NH-3 from km 236.00 to km 

332.100 (97.74 Km) in the State of Madhya Pradesh” as a Concessionaire in terms of the 

Concession Agreement entered into with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). The 

concession period of the project is 20 years commencing from the ‘Appointed Date’ i.e. January 

25, 2016. The project is being executed in two stages. The Commercial Operations Date (COD) 

for Stage-I of the project (87.5 km length) was achieved ahead of its ‘Scheduled Date of 
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Completion’ on June 6, 2018, and thereafter the operation of toll plaza and collection of revenue 

has been started. The construction of Stage-II of the project (12.39 km) is being undertaken 

progressively and the company has applied for the provisional completion certificate for the 

available land of 10.39 km, which is expected to be achieved in September 2022.  

 

There were various measures taken by the Government of India for providing relief to the 

affected from impact of COVID-19 pandemic. With this commitment of the Government, the 

Ministry of Road Transport and Highways (MoRTH) has extended relief to contractors, 

concessionaires and developers of road sector from the impact of COVID-19 pandemic upto 

October 31, 2022. Under these initiatives of the Government, your company has been granted 

extension of concession period by 29.835 days as relief by NHAI in July 2021, on account of 

‘Force Majeure Event’ due to first wave of COVID-19 pandemic and compensation for the loss 

of revenue. Further, due to the impact of second and third wave of COVID-19 pandemic and 

subsequent monsoon, the construction of Stage-II of the project got affected and extension of 

time in ‘Schedule Date of Completion’ has been claimed from NHAI as relief. The matter is 

under consideration of NHAI and an early response is perceived. 

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Your Company has achieved revenue from toll operations of ₹120.75 Crore as against ₹110.78 

Crore for the previous financial year, thus registering an increase of 9.35%. The loss before tax 

was ₹12.05 Crore for the FY 2021-22 as against the loss of ₹14.06 Crore for the previous 

financial year implying a decrease in loss by 14.30%.  

 

The authorized as well as paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs.150 Crore. 

During the FY 2021-22, your Company has repaid the outstanding balance of secured loan of 

Rs.501 Crore obtained from IRCON on March 28, 2022. This was repaid out of the proceeds of 

re-financing term loan facility / secured loan of ₹501 Crore availed from State Bank of India 

(SBI) on March 28, 2022. IRCON has provided Corporate Guarantee in favour of the bank 

for the said re-financed loan. 

  

COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES  

Corporate Governance: Compliances and disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. Your company is also exempt 

from the compliance with the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guidelines on Corporate 

Governance for CPSEs being a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON and a CPSE constituted as 

SPV. 
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MoU: Your Company has requested the holding company for seeking exemption from DPE, 

(through the Ministry of Railways) from signing of Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for the 

2022-23 with the holding company.  

 

 

JOURNEY AHEAD 

The revenue generated from the toll operations of the project are intended to cover the 

operating cost, repayment of principal amount of debt and financing costs. The toll revenue is 

expected to increase in future years post COD for the Stage-II of the project, when the full 

operation of the project will commence. Further, the initiatives taken by Government of India / 

NHAI for ensuring seamless travel, better infrastructure and connectivity for the highway users 

like ‘Bharat Nirman’ programmes linking all unconnected villages with fair weather roads, 

measures for improving electronic toll collection etc. will further enhance the efficiency of toll 

operations and future growth of the Company. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

On behalf of Board of Directors, I express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and 

co-operation extended to the Company by the MoRTH and NHAI for their support and guidance 

to the Company. Further, I record my sincere appreciation for the cooperation extended by the 

holding Company, Ircon International Limited, the office of Comptroller & Auditor General of 

India (C&AG), the Auditors, Bankers of the Company and other professionals associated with 

the Company.  

 

I would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board and the Company's employees for their 

unstinting support. I look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead. 

 
For and on behalf of 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
 

                                                                                                                    Sd/- 
(Ashok Kumar Goyal) 

                                                                                                                       Chairman  
                        [DIN: 05308809] 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

  

 

Dear Members, 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 7th Annual Report and Audited Financial 

Statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

The key highlights on the financial performance of your company for the Financial Year 

(FY) ended March 31, 2022 with comparative position of previous year’s performance are 

as under:  

               (Amount in ₹ Crore) 

Sl.  

No. 

Financial Parameters Year ended 
31.03.2022 

Year ended 
31.03.2021 

1  Revenue from Toll Operations 120.75 110.78 

2  Construction Contract Revenue 20.69 - 

3  Revenue from Construction Services (Change of 
Scope and other works) 

2.07 - 

4  Other Operating Revenue 0.35 0.35 

5  Other Income 0.21 0.38 

6  Total Income [(1) + (2)] 144.07 111.16 

7  Project Expenses 71.05 40.11 

8  Administration Expenses (including finance cost 
and depreciation, amortization & impairment) 

85.01 84.96 

9  Other Expenses 0.06 0.15 

10  Total Expenses [(4) + (5) + (6)] 156.12 125.22 

11  Profit / (Loss) Before Tax [(3) – (7)] (12.05) (14.06) 

12  Profit / (Loss) After Tax (12.05) (14.06) 

 

The financial statements for the FY 2021-22 have been prepared in pursuance of the 

provisions of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in conformity with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

 

2. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Your Company has been incorporated as a public limited company, Special Purpose 

Vehicle (SPV) and wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on 

May 12, 2015, and is a government company in terms of the provisions of section 2(45) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is executing the project of National Highways 

Authority of India (NHAI) viz “Four-laning of Shivpuri-Guna Section of NH-3 from 236.00 
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km to 332.100 km on Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis on Design, Build, 

Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) pattern under NHDP Phase IV” in the State of 

Madhya Pradesh with total length of 97.70 km (“the Project”). The approval for 

commencement of Business has been obtained on May 27, 2015. In terms of the 

concession agreement dated June 15, 2015, NHAI has granted right to construct, operate 

and maintain the Project (the “Concession”) for 20 years (including construction period) 

commencing from the ‘Appointed Date’ i.e. January 25, 2016. The Project is to be 

executed in two stages viz Stage-I having length of 85.31 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 

236.000 to Km 319.700) with execution period of 910 days (30 months) and Stage-II 

having length of 12.39 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 319.700 to Km 332.100) with execution 

period of 12 months.  

 

The total cost approved for the execution of the Project is ₹872.11 Crore, and was 

allocated in the equity share capital of ₹150 Crore (100% held by IRCON) and debt 

portion of ₹722.11 Crore, which was initially approved by IRCON as loan and partially 

availed by IrconSGTL. The details of existing secured loan availed by your Company are 

detailed in para on ‘Secured Loan and Rating’ in the report at para no.5 below. 

 

In terms of the concession agreement between NHAI and IrconSGTL entered on June 15, 

2015, the scheduled concession period was upto January 24, 2036. However, in view of 

first and second wave of COVID-19 pandemic, there was countrywide lockdown and 

resultant suspension of user fee collection by MORTH / NHAI, in pursuance to the 

provisions of National Disaster Management Act, 2005. Due to this ‘Force Majeure Event’ 

experienced by your Company during the period from March 26, 2020 to April 19, 2020 on 

account of first wave of COVID-19 pandemic, relief was claimed from NHAI in accordance 

with provision of the Concession Agreement read in conjunction with applicable policy 

guidelines issued by Government of India / MORTH / NHAI. During FY 2021-22, in July 

2021, NHAI has granted approval for extension of Concession Period for a net period of 

29.835 days as relief (against the claim of 33.62 days). Additionally, due to subsistence of 

Force Majeure Event’ on account of second wave of COVID-19 pandemic during the 

period from April 2021 till June 30, 2021, relief was claimed by your Company from NHAI. 

Accordingly, Independent Engineer has recommended for extension of Concession 

Period for a net period of 10.89 days as relief (against the claim of 12.06 days) to NHAI, 

which is under consideration of NHAI. 

 

Stage-I Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-I Project is 

₹759.98 Crore, for which IRCON was engaged as EPC Contractor at original EPC Cost 
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of ₹642 Crore. The Scheduled Commercial Operation Date (COD) was July 23, 2018 i.e. 

within 910 Days from the ‘Appointed Date’ of January 25, 2016. The COD for Stage-I of 

the project was achieved one and a half month ahead of the schedule i.e. on June 6, 

2018 (though scheduled on July 23, 2018). After completion of the construction of Stage-

I Project and provisional completion certificate by Independent Engineer, the operation of 

toll plaza and collection of revenue has been started w.e.f. June 07, 2018. The 

completion certificate for Stage-I Project was issued by NHAI w.e.f. September 27, 2018. 

The revenue collected from toll operations from June 07, 2018 to March 31, 2022 is 

₹398.23 Crore. The project is presently in Operations & Maintenance (O&M) phase with 

respect to Stage-I project. 

 

During the year under review, the revenue from toll operations has registered an 

increase of 9.35% to ₹120.75 Crore in FY 2021-22 against ₹110.43 Crore in FY 2021-22, 

owing to increase in tolling fees and traffic. The total revenue for the FY 2021-22 is 

₹144.07 Crore as against ₹111.16 Crore for the previous financial year registering an 

increase of 29.61%. The loss before tax was ₹12.05 Crore for the FY 2021-22 as against 

loss of ₹14.06 Crore for the previous financial year registering decrease in loss by 

14.30%. 

 

The Ministry of Road Transport and Highway (MORTH) / NHAI under the HYBRID 

Electronic Toll Collection (ETC) Program has initiated the cashless collection of user fee 

(i.e. 100% e-tolling) at Purankhedi toll plaza w.e.f. February 16, 2021, and during the FY 

2021-22 the penetration of FASTag is 98% at the toll plaza. 

 

Stage-II Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-II Project is 

₹112.12 Crore, for which IRCON has been engaged as EPC Contractor on cost plus 

basis, on January 01, 2021. The completion period for the construction of Stage-II project 

was initially 12 months from the letter of award to EPC Contractor or handover of site, 

whichever is later. The construction work has been initiated after the site (length of 12.39 

kms) was handed over by NHAI on February 21, 2021. Later on, NHAI / Independent 

Engineer (IE) has intimated that out of the total length of 12.39 kms to be executed under 

the Stage-II, construction work is being done on length of 10.39 kms stretch, and 

execution of at the work of construction of one Vehicular Under Pass (VUP) / one box 

culvert to be done at two locations i.e. start of bypass at Km320+100 and at end of 

bypass at km 332+100, which is to be done under COS (Change of Scope), for which a 

proposal has been submitted to IE and also recommended by the Project Director, NHAI. 
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However, after the close of the year IE on July 27, 2022, has intimated to take up the 

balance 2 km stretch as per the Concession Agreement. 

 

The construction work of Stage-II project got affected due to Force Majeure Event of 

second wave of COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent monsoon. Accordingly, based on 

the request from EPC Contractor, IrconSGTL has made a request to Independent 

Engineer for extension of time for a period of 180 days in the ‘Schedule date of 

Completion’. The Independent Engineer has recommended to NHAI for extension of time 

for a period of 91 days i.e. from February 21, 2022 to May 22, 2022, which is under 

process by NHAI. Additionally, on account of delay in work due to appointment of 

Independent Engineer and its subsequent impact, impact of third wave of COVID-19 

pandemic, delay in issue of applicable permits, strengthening of existing roads and 

rehabilitation works. After the close of the year, your Company has made another 

request the Independent Engineer for further extension of time in ‘Schedule date of 

Completion’ for a period of 320 days (in addition of above 180 days) i.e. from February 

21, 2021 to July 06, 2023, which is under consideration of Independent Engineer / NHAI. 

The provisional completion certificate for Stage-II project is expected in July / August 

2022. 

 

3. SHARE CAPITAL: 

The authorized, paid-up and subscribed equity share capital of the Company is ₹150 

Crore comprising of 15,00,00,000 equity shares of ₹10/- each as on March 31, 2022. 

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company, 

and Ircon International Limited continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of 

IrconSGTL. 

 

4. DIVIDEND, RESERVES AND NET WORTH: 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022. 

 

Your Company has a net worth of ₹61.70 Crore, after considering negative balance of 

₹88.30 Crore in the Reserves as on March 31, 2022. 

 

5. SECURED LOANS AND RATING: 

The financial closure of the project of your Company was achieved by tying up the entire 

debt requirement of ₹722.11 Crore from the holding company, Ircon International Limited 
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in the form of secured loan. Your company had availed a total loan of ₹579.59 Crore from 

IRCON and outstanding balance as on March 28, 2022 stood at ₹501 Crore. During the 

year under review, after obtaining approval from NHAI your company has availed re-

financing term loan facility / secured loan of ₹501 Crore from State Bank of India (SBI) on 

March 28, 2022, for retirement of outstanding existing loan of the holding company. 

IRCON has provided Corporate Guarantee in favour of SBI for the said re-financed 

loan. The outstanding balance of ₹501 Crore availed from IRCON was repaid in full on 

March 28, 2022.  

 

During the FY 2021-22, CARE Ratings Limited has provided ‘CARE AAA (CE)’ rating for 

the long-term bank facilities of ₹501 Crore to your Company. The said rating was 

reaffirmed in July 2022 for the outstanding long-term bank facilities of ₹499.86 Crore 

(Reduced from ₹501 Crore). 

 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE 

OF THE REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position 

of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 

 

7. DETAILS ON IMPACT OF COVID-19: 

The Company has taken all the prescribed precautions as suggested by the Government, 

to mitigate the impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19). The details on impact of 

COVID-19 pandemic has been disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

 

8. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The particulars as prescribed under the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

A. Conservation of Energy:  

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – NIL 

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Solar 

powered blinkers were installed at the project stretch at a total cost of 

approx. ₹1 Lakh. 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment – NIL 

 
B. Technology Absorption: Not Applicable 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; 
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(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution; 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the financial year) 

(a) the details of technology imported; 

(b) the year of import; 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof; and 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year: Not Applicable 

(i) Foreign Exchange Earned 

(ii) Foreign Exchange Outgo 

 

9. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D): 

No R&D activities were carried out during the period under review. 

 

10. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 

DIRECTORS: 

During the year under review, the holding Company had nominated Shri Yogesh Kumar 

Misra [having DIN: 07654014], Chairman & Managing Director, IRCON, as the Chairman 

(Part-time Nominee) of your Company, vice Shri Shyam Lal Gupta, Director (Projects), 

IRCON w.e.f. May 13, 2021. Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra held the post of Chairman upto 

October 01, 2021, and thereafter pursuant to change in nomination by the holding 

company, Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal [having DIN: 05308809] is appointed as Chairman 

w.e.f. October 01, 2021. Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma [having DIN: 08556821] ceased to 

be Director of the Company consequent to change in nomination by IRCON (holding 

Company) w.e.f. August 02, 2021. Also, the holding company has nominated Ms. Ritu 

Arora [having DIN: 00002455], Company Secretary IRCON as Director w.e.f. May 13, 

2022; Shri Masood Ahmad [having DIN: 09008553], Chief General Manager (Civil), 

IRCON as Director w.e.f. August 02, 2021; and Shri Parag Verma [having DIN: 

05272169], Executive Director (Infrastructure), IRCON as Director w.e.f. December 29, 

2022.  

 
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2022, was as 

follows: 
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S. No. Name  Designation 

1.  Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal 

[DIN: 05308809] 

Chairman 

2.  Shri Parag Verma 

[DIN: 05272169] 

Director 

3.  Shri Surajit Dutta 

[DIN: 06687032] 

Director 

4.  Shri Masood Ahmad 

[DIN: 09008553] 

Director 

5.  Ms. Ritu Arora 

[DIN: 00002455] 

Director 

  
None of the Directors are related to each other.  
 

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal, 

[having DIN: 05308809], Chairman shall retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting 

of your Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of 

Directors recommends his re-appointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to 

the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 

 
After the closure of the year, the holding company has nominated Shri Mugunthan Boju 

Gowda [having DIN: 08517013], Executive Director (Finance), IRCON as Director, vice 

Shri Surajit Dutta [having DIN: 06687032] w.e.f. April 01, 2022. Later, Shri Rohit Parmar 

[having DIN: 08190141], Chief General Manager (Finance), IRCON is nominated as 

Director, in place of Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda w.e.f. June 01, 2022. 

 
Shri Parag Verma and Shri Rohit Parmar were appointed as additional directors. Their 

appointment is proposed to be regularized at the ensuing 7th AGM of the Company and 

has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM. 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the following were 

the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31, 2022: 

S. No. Name Designation 

1. Shri Atul Kumar Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

2. Shri Vinay Kumar Ahuja Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

3. Ms. Iti Matta Company Secretary (CS)  
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During the year under review, due to nomination as Director in IrconSGTL Shri Masood 

Ahmad ceased to be CEO and KMP w.e.f. August 02, 2021 and in his place Shri Atul 

Kumar was nominated by the holding company. Shri Atul Kumar was appointed by the 

Board as CEO and KMP w.e.f. August 03, 2021. Also, Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta ceased 

to be a CFO & KMP of the Company w.e.f. 01.07.2021 and Shri Vinay Kumar Ahuja was 

nominated as CFO & KMP of the Company w.e.f. July 01, 2021. 

 
Shri Vinay Kumar Ahuja ceased to be CFO of the Company on March 31, 2022, and in his 

place Smt. Rachna Tomar is nominated as CFO by the holding Company. After the close 

of the year, Smt. Rachna Tomar is appointed by the Board as CFO and KMP of the 

Company w.e.f. April 01, 2022. 

 
11. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AGM AND ATTENDANCE OF 

DIRECTORS: 

During the financial year 2021-22, seven (7) Board Meetings were held i.e. on June 22, 

2021; July 19, 2021; August 10, 2021; October 08, 2021; November 08, 2021, February 

08, 2022 and March 31, 2022. The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals 

with a time gap of not more than 120 days between two consecutive Meetings. All the 

Board meetings were held through physical mode, except one meeting held on June 22, 

2021 which was held through Video Conferencing mode. All the meetings of the Board of 

Directors and Annual General Meeting were held at the registered office of the Company. 

 
The attendance details of the Board Meetings is as follows: 

S. No. Date of the Meting Board Strength No. of Directors 

Present 

1. 22.06.2021 5 5 

2. 19.07.2021 5 4 

3. 10.08.2021 5 5 

4. 08.10.2021 4 4 

5. 08.11.2021 4 3 

6. 08.02.2022 5 4 

7. 31.03.2022 5 5 

 

The details Director’s attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting held 

during FY 2021-22 are tabled below:  
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S. 
No. 

Date of 
Board 

Meeting / 
AGM  

Attendance of Directors 

Shri 
Ashok 
Kumar 
Goyal 

Shri 
Yogesh 
Kumar 
Misra 
(upto 
01.10. 
2021) 

Shri 
Surajit 
Dutta 

Shri 
Devendra 

Kumar 
Sharma 

(upto 
02.08. 
2021) 

Ms. 
Ritu 

Arora 
(upto 
01.10. 
2021) 

Shri 
Parag 
Verma 
(w.e.f. 
29.12. 
2021) 

Shri 
Masood 
Ahmad 
(w.e.f. 
02.08. 
2021) 

1 22.06.2021 ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ N.A. N.A. 

2 19.07.2021 ✓ ✓ ✓ L/A ✓ N.A. N.A. 

3 10.08.2021 ✓ ✓ ✓ N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ 

4 08.10.2021 ✓ N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ 

5 08.11.2021 L/A N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ 

6 08.02.2022 ✓ N.A. L/A N.A. ✓ ✓ ✓ 

7 31.03.2022 ✓ N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ ✓ ✓ 

8. AGM -

18.08.2021 

✓ ✓ ✓ N.A. ✓ N.A. ✓ 

N.A. - Not a director as on said date. 
L/A - Leave of Absence. 

  

12. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND 

EXEMPTIONS THERETO: 

In terms of provisions of section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, unlisted public 

companies, which are wholly owned subsidiaries are exempted from the requirement of 

appointing Independent Directors on their Board. Also, read with the provisions of section 

177(1), 178(1) and rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014, the requirement of constitution of 'Audit Committee' and 'Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee', is not applicable on such companies. 

 

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) OM dated July 8-10, 2014 

read with OM dated July 11, 2019, the CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle 

(SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance 

for CPSEs.  
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Accordingly, IrconSGTL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary 

company of IRCON, is not required to appoint Independent Directors on its Board, and 

the declaration by the Independent Directors is also not applicable. Further, the 

constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board 

is also not applicable.  

 

13. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification no. GSR 463(E) dated June 05, 

2015, the provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-rule 4 

of rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014 and section 178(2) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, regarding annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees and of the individual 

directors, is not applicable to the Government Companies, in case the Directors are 

evaluated by the Ministry which is administrative in-charge of the Company as per its own 

evaluation methodology. 

 

IrconSGTL is a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON. All the 

Directors of your company are nominated by the holding company, who are subject to 

evaluation by the holding company as per its pre-defined criteria in line with the guidelines 

of the Government of India. 

 

14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, with regard to Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) are at present not applicable on the Company. 

 

15. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

The Board does not foresee any major threat / risk to the business of the Company. 

 

16. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the 

size of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable 

Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the 

financial statements. 

 

The Company has appointed an independent firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal 

Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with adequate 

internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The Internal 

Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The 
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Reports of the Auditors along with the management’s responses are placed before the 

Board of Directors for discussion and necessary action. 

 

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 11 employees, which included 6 employees 

deputed by the holding company which are on regular basis, and 5 employees appointed 

by your Company on contract basis. 

 

The provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to managerial 

remuneration and requirements of disclosures in the Board’s Report as specified under 

section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related rules thereto are not 

applicable on the Government companies in terms of notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 

June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Accordingly, such 

particulars are not included as part of Directors’ Report.  

No remuneration is being paid to the Directors of the Company. The remuneration paid to 

the KMPs is disclosed in the ‘Extract of Annual Return’. 

 

18. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

In compliance with the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, with respect 

to establishment of vigil mechanism, the Board of Directors have approved vigil 

mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behaviour 

actual or suspected frauds and to provide safeguard against victimization of employees 

and Directors who avail the mechanism.  

 

The requirement of appointment of Independent Directors and constitution of Audit 

Committee is not applicable on the Company. Thus, the Board of Directors have 

nominated a director for the purpose of vigil mechanism to whom other directors and 

employees may report their concerns. 

 

Under the vigil mechanism adopted by your Company, the complaints of  

(a) nominated / deputed employees from the holding company shall be addressed as per 

the ‘Whistle blower policy’ of IRCON (Holding Company), which is available at the 

website of the IRCON at the link 

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&Itemid=6

06&lang=en along with the names and other details of the officials to whom the 

complaints are to be addressed. 
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(b) for other persons in the employment of the Company, the Complaints shall be 

addressed to: 

Shri Masood Ahmad, Director,  

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) 

Address: C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi – 110017 

Phone No.: +91-011-26545410 

Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org  

 

 No complaints were received during the FY 2021-22 and no person have been denied 

access to the aforementioned designated officials / vigil mechanism adopted by the 

Company. 

 

19. PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

There were no complaints of sexual harassment pending at the beginning or received by 

the Company during the year under review.  

 

Your Company has adopted the ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of 

Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ (POSH Policy) formulated by the holding company, 

IRCON, which is available at the website of the holding company at link 

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&Itemid=606&l

ang=en. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) of IRCON formed at the Corporate 

Office as well as its nearest project office shall be the ICC of IrconSGTL, for dealing with 

matters under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013.  

 

20. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 

Your Company has requested the holding company for seeking exemption from DPE 

through the Ministry of Railways from signing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

between IRCON and IrconSGTL for the FY 2021-22 & 2022-23. 

 

21. MSME COMPLIANCES: 

In exercise of powers conferred by the provisions of section 9 of the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions 

that all companies registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more 

than ₹500 Crore and all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the 

Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of 

the Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the 
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competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the 

Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the competent authority 

to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the 

above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. December 16, 

2019, to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their 

receivables and realisation of their payment before the due date. 

 
The Annual Procurement targets from MSEs have been complied during FY 2021-22. 

 
22. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

(Pursuant to section 134(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013) 

In accordance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of 

the Company hereby confirms: - 

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 

as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 

financial year and loss of the company for that period; 

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating effectively. 

 
23. AUDITOR: 

STATUTORY AUDITOR: 

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed M/s P.R. Kumar & Co., 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003186N) as the Statutory Auditors of your 

Company for the FY 2021-22, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Statutory Auditors of your Company have given report on the financial statements for 

the FY 2021-22 drawing attention under ‘Report on Internal Financial Controls’. The 

observations and the management's reply thereto is as under -: 
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Observation of Statutory Auditors 

for FY ending 31.03.2022 

Management Reply 

The company has independent 

software, namely "Comvision 

Tollway Management System" for 

the operation of Tollway Plaza 

and we have noticed that the 

company should have more 

robust control so that the 

company will not lose the revenue 

in relation to overweight charges 

 

 

 

The software has been reviewed to enable 

mitigating of the such weakness to improve the 

overall internal financial control. TMS (Toll 

Management System) has been updated for 

following improvements during the year 2021-22:  

1. Sometimes system by error shows standard 

weight as "zero". System has been updated 

now this issue has been eliminated. As of now 

issues of overweight due to this zero-weight 

revenue loss has been taken care of.  

2. Timely calibration of WIM and SWB from 

government department have been done for 

overweight charges.  

3. Internet speed has been increased from 

4mbps to 10mbps. This has improved tag 

reading efficiency.  

4. Ensuring timely audit of ETC (Electronic toll 

collection) transactions.  

5. ICD 2.5 has been implemented to monitor 

revenue losses due to blacklisting of tags.  

6. RFID reader location has been changed for 

fast reading of FASTag.  

7. TMS has been integrated with TMCC (Toll 

Monitoring & Control Centre) portal of IHMCL, 

New Delhi for real time monitoring of 

transactions and physical fitness of hardware 

and software. 

 

COST AUDITOR: 

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost 

accounts and records. M/s Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants were appointed as the 

Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2021-22, in terms of the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.  
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INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

Your Company had appointed M/s Ravi Ranjan Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the 

Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2021-22, in terms of the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, M/s Ravi Ranjan Co. LLP had 

conducted internal audit on half-yearly basis and submitted their report to the Board of 

Directors.  

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

Pursuant to provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company 

has appointed M/s Vasisht & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No. 21476), 

as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit 

Report for FY 2021-22 do not contain any adverse observations and forms part of this 

Report. 

 

24. C&AG REVIEW:  

The comments of Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India on the Financial 

Statements for the year ending March 31, 2022, have not been received as on the date of 

the report.   

 

25. ANNEXURES TO THE REPORT: 

The following certificate / reports etc. are annexed and forms an integral part of this 

report: 

A. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: As per requirement under the provisions of 

section 92(3), Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the annual 

return in Form No. MGT-9 is enclosed to this Report as ‘Appendix-A’.   

 

B. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 

PARTIES: During FY 2021-22 the related party transactions were with the holding 

company, IRCON and were approved in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. These 

transactions were at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the 

Company. The details of Related Party Transactions in form AOC-2 is enclosed to this 

report as ‘Appendix-B’.  

 

C. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: The Secretarial Audit Report by M/s Vasisht & 

Associates is enclosed to this report as ‘Appendix-C’. 
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26. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

(i) Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) relating to ‘Meetings of the 

Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ during the FY 2021-22. 

(ii) Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the financial 

year.  

(iii) Your Company does not have Subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture Company. 

(iv) There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year 

ended March 31, 2022. 

(v) No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by your 

company during the FY 2021-22, however, RTI applications transferred from DPE 

were duly replied during the FY 2021-22.  

(vi) There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which 

would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

Further, there were no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors vide their Report 

for the FY 2021-22. 

(vii) There are no proceedings initiated / pending against your Company under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

(viii) The Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made any investment 

covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(ix) All Directors had disclosed his nature of their interest / concern in the company or 

companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of individuals as required 

under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.  

(x) The Annual Report and the Annual Public Procurement Policy of your company are 

placed at the website of the holding company at link 

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=58&Itemid=6

11&lang=en.  
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also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and sincere thanks for the cooperation 
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(Ashok Kumar Goyal) 
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 ‘Appendix-A’ 
FORM NO.MGT -9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 

(Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014) 

 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

 

1 Corporate Identity Number 
(CIN) 

 - U45400DL2015GOI280017 

2 Registration Date  - 12th May 2015 

3 Name of the Company  - Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

4a) Category of the Company  - Public Company 

4b) Sub-category of the Company  - Government Company (Wholly owned subsidiary of 
Ircon International Limited), limited by shares and 
company having share capital 

5 Address of the Registered 
office & contact details 

 - Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi – 
110017 

Ph. No.: 011-26545267 

Email id: cs.irconsgtl@gmail.com 

6 Whether Listed Company  
(Yes/ No) 

 - No 

7 Name, Address & contact 
details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any. 

 - NIL 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated: 
 
Sl. No. Name and Description of Main Products / 

Services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

% to total 

turnover of 

the Company 

1 Rendering Services in the nature of construction 

Project Highway on Shivpuri Guna Section (NH-3) in 

the State of Madhya Pradesh  

Construction services: Highway Project (through EPC 

Contractor) 

42101 100% 

 
III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

*100% Shares held by Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and its 7 Nominees. 

Sl. 
No. 

Name and Address 
of the Company 

CIN/ GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary

/ 
Associate 

% of 
shares 

held 

Applicable 
section 

1 Ircon International 

Limited 

C-4, District Centre, 

Saket, New Delhi -

110017 

L45203DL1976GOI008171 Holding 100% 2(46) 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

(i) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING: 
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the  
beginning of the year i.e.  

01.04.2021 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year i.e. 31.03.2022 

% 
Cha
nge 
duri
ng 
the 
year 

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shar
es 

Demat   Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share

s 

 

A. Promoters 

and promoter 

group 

         

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/   

HUF 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Central 

Govt/ State 

Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Bodies 

Corp. 

Nil 150000000 150000000 100% Nil 150000000 150000000 100% - 

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

e) others - - - - - - - - - 

Sub Total A(1) Nil 150000000 150000000 100% Nil 150000000 150000000 100% - 

 (2) Foreign          

a) Individual 

(NRI’s/Foreign 

Individuals) 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Bodies 

Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

d) Qualified 

Foreign 

Investor 

- - - - - - - - - 

e)others - - - - - - - - - 

Sub Total A(2) - - - - - - - - - 

Total A = A(1) 

+ A(2) 

Nil 150000000 150000000 100% Nil 150000000 150000000 100% - 

B. Public 

Shareholding 
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1. Institutions          

a) Mutual 

Funds/UTI 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

c) Central 

Govt/ State 

Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Venture 

Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Insurance 

Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Foreign 

Institutional  

Investors 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) Foreign 

Venture 

Capital 

Investors 

- - - - - - - - - 

 h) Qualified 

Foreign 

Investors 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others  - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total B 

(1): 

- - - - - - - - - 

2. Non-
Institutions          

a) Bodies 

Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals          

i) Individuals 

holding 

nominal share 

capital upto ₹ 1 

lakh. 

- - - - - - - - - 

ii) Individuals 

holding 

nominal share 

capital in 

excess of ₹ 1 

lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Others  - - - - - - - - - 
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d) Qualified 

Foreign 

Investors 

- -    - - - - - - - 

Sub-total B 
(2): 

- - - - - - - - - 

Total B = B(1) 
+ B(2) 

- - - - - - - - - 

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
against which 
Depository 
receipts have 
been issued 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

Nil 150000000 150000000 100% Nil 150000000 150000000 100% - 

 
Notes:  
1. IrconSGTL is a wholly- owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON). 

   2.14,99,99,200 shares of ₹10/- each held by IRCON and 800 shares of ₹10/- each are held by 7 nominee 
shareholders ‘’for and on behalf of Ircon International Limited” i.e. 1 shareholder is holding 200 shares 
and rest 6 shareholders are holding 100 shares. 

 
(ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS: 

 

S. 
No. 

Sharehol-
der’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year i.e.  

01.04.2021 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year i.e. 31.03.2022* 

% Change 
in Shareho-
lding during 

the Year No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
of the 

Compa
ny 

%of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbe

red to 
total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
of the 

Compa
ny 

%of 
Shares 
Pledge

d / 
encumb
ered to 

total 
shares 

1. Ircon 
International 
Limited * 

150000000 100% Nil 150000000 100% Nil - 

  150000000 100% Nil 150000000 100% Nil - 

 
*List of Shareholdings by IRCON and its nominees as on 31st March 2022, are attached as Annexure 

 
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:  

 

S.  
No. 

Particulars Shareholding at the 
beginning of the Year, 
as on 31st March 2021 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 
Year, as on 31st March 

2022 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
Company 

 1. At the Beginning of the Year 
(01.04.2021) 

150000000 100% 150000000 100% 

 2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 

NIL 
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/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

 3. At the End of the Year (31.03.2022) 150000000 100% 150000000 100% 

 

(iii) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:  

(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS): 

 

S. 

No. 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the Year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

of the 

Compa

ny 

1.  At the Beginning of the Year (01.04.2021)  

 

 

NOT APPLICABLE 

2.  Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the year 

specifying the reasons for increase 

/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ 

sweat equity etc): 

3.  At the End of the Year (31.03.2022) 

 

(iv) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Shareholding of Each Director(s) and Each 
Key Managerial Personnel 

Shareholding at the 
beginning 

of the Year, as on 31st 
March 2021 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the 

Year as on 31st March 
2022 

No. of 
Share
s 

% of total 
Shares of the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 
Company 

At the Beginning of the Year - 
 
 

NIL 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

At the End of the Year 

Note:  
1. As on 31st March 2022, 100 equity shares of ₹10/- each, each were held by the Directors of the 

Company, viz. Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal, Shri Surajit Dutta, Shri Parag Verma, “for and on behalf of 
Ircon International Limited”. 

 
V.  INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not 

due for payment. 
(Amount in ₹) 

Particulars Secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning 
of the financial year i.e. 
01.04.2021 

     

i) Principal Amount 5,26,00,00,000 - - - 5,26,00,00,000 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - - 
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Total (i+ii+iii) 5,26,00,00,000 - - - 5,26,00,00,000 

Total Secured Loans (i+ii+iii) 5,26,00,00,000 

Change in Indebtedness of 
Principal during the financial 
year 

     

* Addition 5,01,00,00,000 - - - 5,01,00,00,000 

* Reduction 5,27,14,02,872 - - - 5,27,14,02,872 

Net Change (in Secured 
Loans) 

4,99,85,97,128 

Change in Indebtedness of 
Interest during the financial 
year 

     

* Addition - - - - - 

* Reduction - - - - - 

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year i.e. 31.03.2022 

- - - - - 

i) Principal Amount of Secured 
Loan 

4,99,85,97,128 - - - 4,99,85,97,128 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - - 

Total Secured Loans (i+ii+iii) 4,99,85,97,128 

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-  

(A) REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER*: 

 

  S. 
 No. 

Particulars of Remuneration  Name of MD/WTD/ 
Manager 

Total 
Amount 

1. Gross salary 

NOT APPLICABLE 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income- tax Act, 1961 

2. Stock Option 

3. Sweat Equity 

4. Commission 
-  as % of profit   
-  others, specify… 
  
  5. Others, please specify 
  
  

  Total (A) 
  
  

  Ceiling as per the Act 
  
  

* IrconSGTL has Part-time Directors nominated on the Board by the holding company ‘’IRCON’’. They do not 
draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors. 

 
(B). REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: 

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration  Name of Directors Total 
Amount 

1 Independent Directors  

 

 
 

Fee for attending board committee meetings 

Commission 

Others, please specify 

Total (B1) 
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2 Other Non-Executive Directors  

NOT APPLICABLE 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Fee for attending board committee meetings 

Commission 

Others, please specify 

  

  

  

Total (B2) 

Total (B)=(1+2)  

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 

  
Ceiling as per the Act – not applicable 

 
(C) REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD): 

                                                                                                                                   

(Amount in ₹) 

S. 
No. 

Particulars 
of 

Remunerati
on 

Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO CFO CS Total 

Shri Masood 
Ahmad 
(upto 

02.08.2021) 

Shri Atul 
Kumar 
(w.e.f. 

03.08.2021) 

Shri 
Sanjeev 
Kumar 
Gupta  
(Upto 

30.06.2021) 

Shri Vinay 
Ahuja  
(w.e.f. 

01.07.2021 
upto 

31.03.2022) 

Smt. Iti 
Matta 

(During 
FY 2021-

22) 

1 Gross Salary 
      

(a) Salary as 
per 
provision
s 
contained 
in section 
17(1) of 
the 
Income-
tax Act, 
1961  

8,78,680 25,26,945 3,90,238 22,06,598 15,26,070 75,28,531 

(b) Value of 
perquisite
s u/s 
17(2) 
Income-
tax Act, 
1961  

- - - - - - 

(c) Profits in 
lieu of 
salary 
under 
section 
17(3) 
Income-
tax Act, 
1961  

- - - - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - - - - 

4 Others 
(Medical Spl. 
diseases) 

- 2,94,683 52,454 - - 3,47,137 

5 Performance 
linked 
incentive 

1,24,897 3,47,718 42,072 3,22,114 1,93,536 10,30,337 
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6 Retirement 
benefits 

2,75,888 7,12,969 1,67,355 6,12,226 4,23,493 21,91,931 

 
Total 12,79,465 38,82,315 6,52,119 31,40,938 21,43,099 1,10,97,9
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Note: Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is exempt for Government Companies in terms of MCA 
notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs  

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / 
NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal 
made, 
if any (give 
Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty  
NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty  
NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty  
NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

 
                                 For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

                                                                                                                                 sd/- 
(Ashok Kumar Goyal) 

         Chairman 
               [DIN: 05308809] 

Date:  18.08.2022 
Place: New Delhi 
 

Annexure 
 

List of Shareholders  
(as on 31st March 2022) 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the Shareholder No. of shares held  
(of Rs 10/- each) 

1 Ircon International Limited  14,99,99,200 

2 Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra* 100 

3 Shri Shyam Lal Gupta* 200 

4 Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal* 100 

5 Shri Surajit Dutta* 100 

6 Shri Parag Verma* 100 

7 Shri Subhash Chand* 100 

8 Shri B. Mugunthan* 100 

 Total 15,00,00,000 

* 200 shares held by one nominee shareholder and 100 share each held by six nominee shareholders; all are 
officials of the holding company Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and holding shares “for and on behalf of 
IRCON”. 
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‘Appendix-B’  

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO 
BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF 
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARM’S LENGTH 
TRANSACTIONS UNDER FOURTH PROVISO THERETO, FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
2021-22 

 
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis : NIL 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As 

follows: 

Name of the 
related party 
and nature 

of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts / 

arrangements / 
transactions 

Duration of 
contracts / 

arrangements 
/ transactions 

Salient terms 
of contracts / 

arrangements / 
transactions, 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of 
approval 

by the 
BoD, if 

any 

Amount 
received / 

paid as 
advances 

by 
IrconSGTL, 

if any 
(₹ in Crore) 

Ircon 
International 
Limited 
(IRCON),                 
Holding 
Company 

1. EPC 
Agreement  
 
(For appointing 
IRCON as 
EPC 
Contractor) 
 
 
  

Date: EPC 
Agreement 
executed on 
20.01.2021. 
 
Duration: 12 
months from 
letter of award 
dated 
01.01.2021 or 
handover of 
site, whichever 
is later.  

Execution of 
complete scope 
of work of 
Stage-II of the 
project ‘Four 
laning of 
Shivpuri to 
Guna from Km 
236.000 to Km 
332.100 
(Package 1) in 
the State of 
Madhya 
Pradesh. 

26.11.20
20 

₹13.37 
Crore paid 

as 
recoupable 

advance 

2. Lease 
Agreement 
 
(To take on 
lease premises 
of IRCON as 
the Registered 
Office 
Premises of 
IrconSGTL)  
  

Date: Lease 
Agreement 
executed on 
02.06.2021 
 
Duration: 
01.07.2021 to 
31.03.2023 

Rent: @ 
₹21,236/- p.m. 
plus GST for an 
area of 65 sqm. 

22.06.20
21 

NIL 

3. Civil 
Construction 
and Electrical 
works for 
proposed 

Date: Letter of 
award dated 
26.07.2021 
 
Duration: 30 

Civil 
construction and 
electrical works 
for proposed 
two numbers of 

08.10.20
21 

NIL 
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Oxygen 
Generation 
Plants in the 
State of 
Madhya 
Pradesh 
 
(For appointing 
IRCON as 
agency for the 
works) 

days from 
issue of LOA 

oxygen plants in 
the State of 
Madhya 
Pradesh at two 
locations i.e. (i) 
District Hospital, 
Guna [1000 
LPM (DRDO)] 
and (ii) Civil 
HospitaI, Aron 
Distt., Guna 
[500 LPM 
(DRDO)], on 
reimbursement 
basis. 
 

Note:  
1. Apart from the above transactions, the holding company has also deputed its employees to 

IrconSGTL, which is on actual cost (CTC) basis. The salary benefits paid to such deputed 
employees is as per IRCON’s policy and are being reimbursed by IrconSGTL on actual 
basis.  
 

2. The details of “Related Party Disclosures” as per accounting standards are being disclosed 
in Notes to the accounts in the Financial Statements. 

 
                                 For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

                                                                                                                                 sd/- 

(Ashok Kumar Goyal) 
         Chairman 

               [DIN: 05308809] 
Date:  18.08.2022 
Place: New Delhi 
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To, 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial PersonneO Rules, 2014J 

The Members, 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 

CIN: U45400DL2015GOl280017 

C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-11 0017, India 

I, Shobhit Vasisht, Proprietor of Vasisht & Associates, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 

compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED (hereinafter called 'the Company'). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on the verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to 

the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the 

provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;{Not 

Applicable to the Company) 
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder ;(Not 

Applicable to the Company) 

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules made thereunder to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings ;(Not Applicable to the Company) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (,SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange board ofIndia (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 and amendments thereof regarding the Companies Act 

and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 

2009; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 2018; 

(Not Applicable to the Company) 

(vi) I further report that the system and processes of the Company are in place to ensure the 

compliance with general laws like Labour Laws, The Indian Contract Act, The Sexual 

Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 etc. 

For the purpose of examining adequacy of compliance with other applicable laws including 

industry / sector specific laws, under both Central and State legislation, reliance has been 

placed on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and 

mechanism formed by the Company for the compliance under these laws. 
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect 

to Board and General Meeting; 

(ii) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued 

by the Department of Public Enterprises vide their OM No. 18(8)/200S-GM dated 14th 

May, 2010. 

(However, it is understood that as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), 

and such companies have got an exemption for appointment of independent directors, submitting 

Quarterly report and other Compliances of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by 

Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide its O.M. dated July 11, 2019 and July 8, 2014.) 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Standards and Guidelines etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that: 

• The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with Non-Executive Directors 

(including Women Director) as nominated by its Holding Company ("Ircon International 

Limited"),as per the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

• Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for meetings of the Board of 

Directors, where consent for shorter notice was obtained. System exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

• All decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken 

unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors. 

• As per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the Management and 

relied upon by me, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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During the period under review, as explained and represented by the management, following 

specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 

standards etc., have been undertaken by the Company. 

1. The Company has availed Rupee Term loan facility of Rs.501 Crore from State Bank of India 

(,SB!') for re-financing the existing term loan obtained from holding Company Ircon 

International Limited ('IRCON'). After disbursal of loan by SBI to the Company on March 28, 

2022, the outstanding balance of existing term loan obtained from IRCON amounting to 

Rs.501 Crore has been repaid by the Company and all the remaining dues of the Company 

in respect of the loan have been paid during FY 2021-22. 

Date: May OS, 2022 

Place: Faridabad 

For VASISHT & ASSOCIATES; 

(Company Secretaries) 

~~1~\\& . 
CS SHOBHIT VASISHT 

UDIN: F011517D000276353 

PR No: 844/2020 

FCS No: 11517 

C P No: 21476 

Note: This report is to be read with the letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 

forms an integral part of this report. 
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To, 

The Members, 

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 

CIN: U45400DL2015GOl280017 

C -4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-11 0017, India 

This report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Annexure-A 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 

the processes and practices, i followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

Date: May OS, 2022 

Place: Faridabad 

FOR VASISHT & ASSOCIATES; 

(Company Secretaries) 

~"'~ CS SHOBHIT VASISHT 

UDIN: FOl1517D000276353 

PR No: 844/2020 

FCS No: 11 517 

C P No: 21476 
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C-2/4 Safdarjung Development Area, Main Aurobindo Marg, New Delhi- 110016, India 

Tel.: +91 (11) 47118888 I E-mail : prkumar(Q)prkumar.ln 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To THE MEMBERS OF 
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financiat Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Mis IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA 
TOLLWAY LIMITED (a wholly owned subsidiary of Mis IRCON International Limited 
("the parent Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, 
the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the ActO) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its losses including 
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing ("SAlis) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report . We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises Directors Report alongwith its annexures including Secretarial 
Audit Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. Such other information is expected to be made available to us after the date 
of this auditor's report. 
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

When we read the report mentioned above, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance. As the other information is not made available to us as at the date of 
this auditor's report, we have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 
(5) of the Company's Act ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as 
amended . This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

We draw attention to Note No. 37(ii) of Financial statements which describe the 
management's assessment of financial impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-
19) pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the 
subsequent period is dependent on the circumstances as they evolve. 

Contd .. .4 
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Our opinion is not modified in this respect. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-I a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable, 

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis 
of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered 
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, in 
the Annexure-II on the directions and sub-directions issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

3. (A) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit, 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been 
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books, 

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account, 

d. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e. Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 
463(E) dated 5th June 201:; issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company; 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to Annexure III; 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

a. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact 
its financial position Refer Note No. 32 to the financial statements; 

b. The company did not have long term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note No. 37 (v ) 
to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of f unds) by t he Company to or in any 
other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf 
of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and bellef, as disclosed in Note No 37(vi) to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Parties 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule liCe) 
contain any material mis-statement. 

e. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. 

(C) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 
463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company; 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 17th MAY, 2022 
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Annexure-I 

ANNEXURE OF THE I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to paragraph (1) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and 
equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has conducted physical verification of the property, plant 
and equipment during the financial year under audit, and no 
discrepa ncies observed related to fixed assets appearing under Fixed 
Assets Register. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements 
are duly executed in favor of the lessee), consequently clause 3(i)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of 
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no 
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions 
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(a) The company does not have any inventory and consequently, clause 
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not been sa nctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
the security of current assets at any point of time during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations provided to ·us, the Company has 
not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, 
consequently, clause 3(iii)(a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not given any loan, guarantee, security or made investment 
as stipulated under Sections 185 Ile. 186 of the Companies Act, consequently, 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts wh ich are deemed to 
be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
appl icable. 
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(vi) The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor 
have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and records. 

(vii) (a) The company has been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident 
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
material statutory dues as applicable to it. Being a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Mis IRCON International Limited (the parent company), 
majority of the employees are on standby deputation basis, therefore, 
statutory dues related to such employees, such as Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance Company, Professional Tax, as applicable, 
are being deducted and deposited by the parent company. However, 
Employees who are on the payroll of the company, all the employees 
related statutory dues, such as Provident Fund, Professional Tax as 
applicable, are being deducted and deposited by company on regular 
basis. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of records of the Company, there are no 
statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of eXCise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained. 
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(dj- According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that 
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we 
report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as 
defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any 
associate or jOint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 
31 March 2022. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and 
procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries 
(as defined under the Act). 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer (including debt 
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering 
the principles of materiality outlined in the Standard of Auditing, we 
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report 
under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received 
by the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing 
and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the transactions with related party is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of 
the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
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(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till 
date for the period under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) and 
3(xvi)(b) of t~e Order are not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly clause 
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us during the 
course of audit, the Group does not have any CICs. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly clause 3(xviii) of the Order not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall 
due. 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act 
pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable. 

(xxi) The company has not prepared consolidated financial statement. Therefore, 
reporting under clause xxi of the order is not applicable. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 17th MAY, 2022 
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Annexure-II 

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to paragraph (2) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

51. No. Query 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Whether the Company has system in 
place to process all the accounting 
transactions through IT System? If yes, 
the implications of processing of 
accounting transactions outside IT 
System on the integrity of the accounts 
along with the financial implications, if 
any, may be stated. 

Whether there is any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off 
of debts / loans / interest etc. made by a 
lender to the company due to the 
company's inability to repay the loan? If 
yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, lender is a 
Government company, then this direction 
is also applicable for statutory auditor of 
lender company). 

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) 
received / receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State Government or its 
agencies were properly accounted for / 
utilized as per its term and conditions? 
List the cases of deviation. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 17th MAY, 2022 

Response 

The company has separate software 
for managing the Operations at Toll 
Plaza, named as "Comvision Toll 
Management System" and 
Accounting Records are being 
maintained under 'Tally Solutions" 
and both the softwares· are not 
integrated. 

There were no cases of waiver / 
write-off of debts/loans/interest. 

There were no funds which have 
been received / receivable for specific 
schemes from Central/State 
agencies. 
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Annexure - III 

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(Referred to paragraph {3(f)} under the heading of "Report on other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date) 

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")] 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mis IRCON 
SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial. information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a pro'cess designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the 
following material weakness has been identified as at March 31, 2022: 

The company has independent software, namely "Comvision Tollway 
Management System" for the operation of Tollway Plaza and we have noticed 
that the company should have more robust controls so that the company will 
not ·Iose the revenue in relation to overweight charges; 

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
a material misstatement of the company's annual financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected on a timely basis. 

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weakness/es 
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the 
Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as of March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
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We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in 
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 
March 31, 2022 financial statements of the Company, and the material weakness does 
not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 17th MAY, 2022 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Arm Re . No.: 003186N 

(Oeepak Srivastava) 
Partner 
M. No.: 501615 
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C-2/4 Safdarjung Development Area, Main Aurobindo Marg, New Delhi- 110016, India 

Tel.: +91 (11) 47118888 I E-mail: prkumar@prkumar.in 

Annexure-II 

Compliance Certificate 

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway 

Limited for the year ended 31 st March, 2022 in accordance with the directions/sub­

directions issued by the C & AG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and certify that we have complied with all the Directions/Sub-directions issued to 

us. 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 17th MAY, 2022 

For P. R. Kumar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.: 003186N 

~~ 
(Deepak Srivastava) 
Partner 
M. No.: 501615 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN- U45400DU015GOI280017) 

BALANCE SHEET As at 31st Mar 2022 

PanicuJan 

I. ASSETS 

Non-curn:ot 2S~tS 
(a) Property. Plant and equipment 

(b) Intulgible _~sscts 
(c) Int:lngiblc assets under- dC'\'ck>pmcnt 
(d) Financial.-usclS 

(i) Olher Fin:ancil.1 .\ssers 

(c) Deferred tl... ... assets ~et) 
(h) Other non-current assets 

Total Non-curTent assets 

Current 3S6ets 

(3.) Financial Assets 
(i) T rode Reccinblcs 

(i~ Cash and cash equl\-:llcn~ 

(ti~ Loans 
(iv) Other Financial Assets 

(b) Current Ta.x Assets (Net) 
(e) Other CUCTCflt 1SSCts 

To~1 Current usets 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equ;ty 
(a) E<juity Sh:lee Capital 
(b) Other Equi~' 

Total Equ;ty 

2 Liabilities 
(i.) Non-current liabiliri~ 

(a) FinancLaI Liabilities 
(~ Borrowings 
(i~ Trode Parables 

T Olal Assets 

- Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 
En terprises 

- Totti outstlnding dues other- thJ.n of 
~Iicm Entcqxises and Sm:lll Enterprises 

(ji~ Other financialliabilitics 
(b) ProvLslons 
(c) Deferred Tl... .. Liabilities Net 

Total Noo-curttnt li:abiliries 

(ii) Cunenl liabitities 
(3) Financial Li:lbilities 

(~ BolTOwings 
(i~ Trode payables 

- Dues of~(icro Entcrprises and 
Small En tcrpOses 

- Total outstanding dues Other 
thJ.l1 of;\(Kro Enterprises J.I1d Srruall 
Ent<q>ci= 

(ii~ Othcr financialliabilitics 
(b) Other CU(Tent liabilities 
(c) PCO\'Lsions 

Total Current liabilities 

Total Equity :and Li:abilities 

IV, Notes fonnln~ p:lrt of financial stlremcnts 

As per our Report of even d:ate attached 

ForP. R. KUMAR & Co. 

~1F~ 
(C.\ Dap,kI:.(' 
P.trblCt" 

~l No. 501615 

ilCODGltt 
(in Rtil ~ro~) 

Not. No, M a t 3m M a r 2022 ' As at 31st Mu 2021 

8.\ 
8.2 

8.3 
8,4 

10 

II 
12 

13 

13.1 

13.2 
14 

6 

15 
15. \ 
15_2 

15.3 

16 

14 

3-3'> 

0,46 

567.10 
10.69 

0,14 

\3 ,37 

0.52 

1.59 

0.10 
0.35 

150.00 

(88.30) 

493.06 

0.03 
23H 

680 

641 

11.86 

1.42 

601.1l6 

256 

604.42 

6170 

516.23 

26,49 

604.42 

057 

G0865 

0.\4 

0.46 

6.42 

0,01 
0,04 

150,00 
(76.25) 

490.07 

10.47 

35.93 

0.46 

609.36 

6.93 

616.29 

73.75 

500.54 

42.00 

616.29 

For and on ~h:alf of IrcoD Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Director 

or1'\-l)'IIlCO< ;) 

~ 
(.\tul ~m;u) 

Chief Exccuti\'c OffKcr 

t~IU~': !:t-­
~~~~~ 

(R.:lcllna TOrTUr) ((ti ~lattl) 
Chief Financial Officer- Comp:lnr Sccrcb[')' 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN- V45400DL2015GOI280017) 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022 iliiODS!!1 

Pllrticulil~ 

1. Revenue: 

Revenue from operations 

II. Other income 

III. Total Income (I + II) 

rv. Expenses: 
Project Expenses 
Employee benefits e"'Penses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 
Other E"'Penses 

Total Expenses (IV). 

V. Loss Before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) 
VI. Exceptional items 
VII. Loss before tax (V + VI) 

VIII. Ta." e"'Penses: 
(1) Current ta." 

- For the Period 
- For earlier years (net) 

(2) Deferred ta." (net) 

Total Ta." E"'Pense 

IX Loss for the period from continuing operation (VII - VIII) 

X Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X) 
XI (Comprising profitt (Loss) and other comprehensive 

income for the year, net of tax) 

XII Earnings Per Equity Share: 
(For Continuing Operation) 
(1) Basic (Absolute Value in INR) 
(? ) Dilut~d ( Absolu r~ VDtll~ II] lNRl 
Face Value Per Equity Share 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For P. R. KUMAR & Co. 

Date : ')..C))"'1-Place : j=7J~C~1 

(in Rs. crore) 

NOleNo. For the year cndt d 31s t Mar 2022 
I!ortbe ,ellr ended 31S! Mar 

17 143.86 

18 0.21 

144.07 

19 71.05 
20 1.94 
21 41.51 
22 41.56 
19 0.06 

156.12 

(12.05) 

-
(12.05) 

-
-

6 -
-

(12.05) 

-

(12.05) 

30 (0.80) 
30 (0.80) 

10.00 

F d on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

l.~d) 

1r\ 
(Atul Kumar) 
Chief Executive Officer 

p:r 
(ll1chnn T ont.~r) 

Chief Financial Officer 

202L 

110.78 

0.38 

111.16 

40.11 
1.72 

41.51 
41.73 
0.15 

125.22 

(14.06) 

-
(14.06) 

-
-
-
-

(14.06) 

-

(14.06) 

(0.94) 
(0.94) 
10.00 

DIN-08517013 

(Iti Matta) 
Company Secretalj 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 
(CIN- U45400DL20 I5GOI2800 17) iliiODS!tl 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW"S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st M~ch 2022 

P:U"t:iculan 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit bdorc L2X:aUon 

Adjustment for: 

Un\\inding of discount on prO\"isions 

Dcprtt~uion. ;lmortil,ltion ,and imp;,irmcm 

Finance Cost 

[ntcrest Income 

Operating Profit before Current INon-Current Assets and Li:J.bilitics 
Adjustment for: 

Decrease I (Inc~c) in Ta.de Rea:mblesr,ll Finmc.i.a..I &set! - Loam 
Dccfc;lse I (Incrc,l:>c) in Other ,\,,:;CI5 & Fin;mc;,ll Assets 

(DCCrc.lSC) I IncrC:J.se In Tr.uic P,lyablcs 

(DccrcJ.sc) / [nCrt:;LSC In Other LI;lbilitics, FirIJnci .. l liabilities & Prm isiolls 

C::ash generated from operations 
Income T .. x P.lid (ncr) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FWW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Pun:::hase of Property, PLlnt and Equipment 

Pun:hasc of Intangible Assets/ Int.mgihlc assets under dC\lclopmcnt 

Interest Received 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCfNG ACTIVITIES 

Loan From IRCO~ (Holding Co) • 

Loan From St.lte BJnk ofInru.l 

Rcp-.lyment of Lo·.1n to [RCGS' (Holding Co) 

RepJyment ofLo.1n to St.ltC B .. nk oflnruJ 

Bo(wwing Cost 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

(I) 

(2) 

(1+2) 

(A) 

(B) 

(q 

Effect of Exchange differenccs on tr.lrularion of Foreign Currcncy C.lsh & Clsh E9ui\'alcnts (D) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 

OpeNING CIS\! " Nil C6S1I !!OlllV"I ,tlNTS 
Cash Balances 

Balance \\ith Banks 
Shorr tcrm im"cstmcnts 

CLOSING CAS 11 AND CAS ll EOUIVALENTS 
Cash Balances 

Balance with Banks 
Short tcrm invcsrmcnt$ 

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 

(A+B+C+D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(F-E) 

As at lill Mar 2022 

(l~ 05) 

0.44 

·u 56 

~1 07 

(017) 

(006) 

(0.3.) 
(0 .• 1) 

19 .. 91 

70.85 

19.10 
89.95 

89.89 

(0002) 
(27.69) 

0.18 

(2751) 

502 .5~ 

(526 00) 

(166) 

(.1.07) 

(67.21) 

(4.83) 

6.42 

159 

(4.83 

AI.::at list M2r 2021 

(1-!06) 

~1 .7) 

.. H 51 

(03.) 

(O.D) 
0.76 

(06') 

1] 07 

S'otc : 1.. The abO\lc Clsh 110w Statemcnt has becn prcp-Jred undcr the "Indirect ~fCthOJ'\lS sct out in thc [nruJ.n Accounting Stand . .lrd (Ind AS) .. 7 on Statemcnt of Cash Flo\.\,'s 

2. Rcconcili3tion of Cash and Cash Equi,aIenls and Components of Cash and Cash Equi,alenlS included in tho.: abo,'c StlndaJonc SlatcmentofCash Flo\\s: 

P.utlc.uWs 
Cash in hand 
Cheques/drafts in hand 
Remittance in Transit 
Balances with banks: 

AI., JI<I March llIlI 

68.84 

1288 
81.72 
072 

82.44 

(002) 

0.3-1 

0.32 

(3815) 

(.1.51) 

(79.66) 

3.10 

3.32 

6.42 

3.10 

- On current accounb 0 06 0.07 • 
_ Flexl Accounts L 5J 6.)5 

- OsooOlts wllh onslno! ITllIlIAritv ar! .... lh.n 3 monlflS 
Total Cosh .. dCash Enu.i""knlus De, IlaIa=Sbeet lUI.d SiaruWoneStatemen.t or Casb Flow< 1.39 6Aa 
" O~'i ,1,g_, ~11V l..s, Ciar" rp'm.Nl"]fW'RJ~.lltTWr1) , Rt ,.j/llnnr( l'"miul)N'" Kr~.JII mw.I} /VrtJIt. 11J eJ'C'Roar ;.Vc.·~~ an ',1rI!t#l·~/.J aJ"prr ~OJU" <1grrt""nl ".rrnJ.,dlNilLJi1 

3, Reconciliation between tb: opening and closing balances in the Balilll:c Shed for liabiliti .... -s arising from financing activities: 

PartitularJ 
o\J., 11IIIoiillOlO 
(0) C .. hno... duting <Ill! )"ar 
(b) Non cash changes during the year due to .. 

Transition impact of 100 AS L 1 fl 
I"",,,,,, A«n.,.j 

AJ al J Ul M.rt.b lOl l 
(oJ CashJ1"" . duri"ll tho l"ar 
(b) Noncash changes during the ~ear due to ~ 

Interest Accrued ( Net ofintcrest p..Jd) 

At at Jilt M'J'<h lOll 

3 Figures in br .. lckct$ reprcscnt outL1ow of c.Bh 

-I Figurcs ofthc pre\ious reM h.I\C lx:cn rcgrOt,pcd / rec;l:)tcd whcrc\cr !\Cccss.lrY 

As per our Report of even d:ue 2tt2ched 

For P. R. KUMAR & Co. 

Ch'lrtcrcd Accollntant~ 

P.lrtncr 

,\L :--Jo .. 501615 
(Arul Kumar) 

Chief Exccuti\'c Officer 

Rs in Crores 

Borrowings 

(,~:" (k--
~ 
(R.u.:hn.ITom.u) 

ChiefFi.n.lI1ci .. IIOHicc( 

Director 

0[:.;' .. 08517u13 

(Iti .\Iatta) 

Comp;II1Y Secret.lt)' 

564 15 

(J8. 15) 

52600 
(26, 14) 

499.86 
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IRCON SHIVPURl GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 
(CIN- U45400DLZ015G0I280017) 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31s1 March 2022 

A. Equity Share Capilal (For the Year ended 31st March 2022) 

Particulars 

B.l~nce as al 01 April, 2020 
Changes in equi ty share capital du ring the j'l"ar 

B. I. nee as at 31 March, 2021 
Chan,I!Cs in cquitv share capir::u during the )TOC 

Balance as at 31s1 March 2022 

B. Other Equity 
For the year ended 31st March 2021 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General 

Retained Earnings Redemption 
Reserves 

Reserve 

Bal.nee as at 1 April, 2020 - (62.19 
Changes in accounting po liC)' or prio r period c££Ors -
Balance as al I April, 2020 (Reslaled) - (62.19 
Profi t/ (Loss) fo r the n :ar - (IHlG) 
Other Comprehensive Income 

Rcmc:asurmcnt ofDcfincd Benefi t Plans - . 
Fo[ci(!f1 E xch:tngc tnnslation di fference -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (14.06 
D i,-idcnJs Paid -
Di,·idcnd Distribution T:L\,: - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - (76.25 

For .he Vca, ended 3 1. I March 2022 

Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Capital 
General 

Retained Earnings Redemption 
Reserves 

Reserve 

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 - Q6.25 
Chan_gc~ in accountinp;: pouey elf prior period erWrs - -
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (Restaled) - (76.25) 
Profu/ (Loss) for the VC":l , - (1205 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Rcmcasunncnt of Defined Benefi t P h os - -
rorci ~ Exch:m.gt! tr:tnslarion difference -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (12.05 
Di" idends Paid - -
Dt\'idcnd Distributio n T ;n: - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - (88.30 

IliiODSJtl 
(Rs. in erore) 

Amountl 
150.00 

-
150.00 

-
150.00 

(Rs. in crore) 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

Exchange differences on 
tranalating the financial 

Total 

statement of a foreign 
operation 

- - (62.19 

- - -
- - (62.19 

- - (14.06 

-
- - -
- - -
- - (14.06 

- -
- -
- - (76.25 

(Rs. in erore) 

Other ComprehensM 
locome 

Exchange difference. on Total 
translating the financial 
stalement of a foreign 

operation 

- - (76.25 

- -
- (76.25 

- - (12.05) 

-
- -

-
- - (12.05 

- - -
- - -
- - (88.30 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on be half of Board ofDireClors 

For P. R. KUMAR & Co. 
Chartered l\ccountants 

"=,£t¥i No. : ImlX(,N 

(CA~~ 
Partner 

M. No. 50161 5 

Place : r~' ~~ ~ 
Da'e : -r--rrr.fJ) 1-

(Atul Kum.u) 

Chief Exccut1\ c Offi cer 

~fU~~I&-

k: 
Chief FinanCIal O fficer 

Directo r 

DlN-IIX517013 

( Iti Matla ) 
Comp:u1)" Secre tary 
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1. Corporate Information 

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited 
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in 
India. The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the 
work of 'Four Laning of Shivpuri - Guna Section of NH-3 from km 236.000 to km 332.100 (Stage -
1) in the state of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT basis in accordance with the terms and conditions 
in the concession agreement by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In pursuance the 
provisions of 'Request for Proposal', the selected bidder 'Ircon International Limited' has formed 
a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) as 
wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 12th May 2015. 
Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 15th June 2015. The 
concession period of 20 years commenced on 25th Jan 2016 i.e. Appointed Date notified by the 
National Highway Authority of India. The registered office of the company located at C-4, District 
Centre, Saket, and NewDelhi -110017. 

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in 
financial statements are presented in crore, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per 
share data and as otherwise stated. 

2. Summary of Significant Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

i. The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and 
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS 
compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements. 

ii. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual 
system of accounting. The company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and 
liabilities, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair 
value: 

• Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at 
present value 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

2.2 Current vs non-current classification 

i. The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non­
current classification. 

ii. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
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• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

iii. The company classifies all other assets as non-current. 

iv. A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 

v. The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

vi. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

vii. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle .. 

2.3 Statement of Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

2.4. Property. Plant and Equipment 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of 
each item can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially 
stated at their cost. 

Cost of asset includes 

Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates. 

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met. 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing 

asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
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(c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the 
indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to 
construction or is incidental thereto. 

(d) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring 
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met. 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. 

ii. Subsequent Measursment 

• Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure 
is capitalized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured 
reliably. 

• Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs 
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

• The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met. 

Iii. Depreciation and Useful lives 

• Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, excluding freehold land is provided 
on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in 
schedule II of the Companies act, 2013 given as follows: 

Particulars 
Building/flats residential/ 
non-residential 
Plant and Machinery 
Survey instruments 
Computers 
Office Equipment's 
Furniture and fixtures 
~ffi~M,~m~a~~m~ffiry~~ 

Vehicles 

Useful lives (Years) 
60 

8-15 
10 
3-6 
5-10 
10 
3-5 
8-10 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during 
the period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is 
available for use/disposed 

• Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if 
the cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of 
that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. 

• Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 
Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. 
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However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit 
and loss irrespective of its value. 

• Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. "Ordinarily, the residual value of 
an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset" as specified in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

iv. Derecognhion 

• An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized 
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognized. 

2.5 Capital work in progress 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

2.6 Investment Properties 

i. Recognhion and Inhial Measurement 

• Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be 
measured reliably. 

• Investment property comprises completed property, property under construction and 
property held under a lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or 
both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production 
or administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, 
including transaction costs. 

• Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other 
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction 
or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognized in 
accordance with the specific requirements of other Ind AS. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Depreciation 

• Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria 
is met. The company depreciates building component of investment property on 
straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase! completion of 
construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated. 
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• Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property 
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

• Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined 
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent 
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally. 

iii. Derecognition 

Investment Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

2.7 Intangible Assets 

i. Recognition and Initial Measurement 

• Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the 
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 
on initial recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if 
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, excluding 
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is 
reflected in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is 
incurred. Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance 
Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets underdevelopment" 

ii. Subsequent MeasullJlTlent and Amortization 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully 
amortized in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification. 

• The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date 
of its acquisition. 

• Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/disposed 

• Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end. 
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iii. Derecognition 

• An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de­
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

iv. Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement) 

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer 

(BOT) basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to collect toll/tariff are recognised when the 

company has been granted rights to charge a toll/tariff from the users of such public 

services and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive 

cash or another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

b) The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade 

services) used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that 

infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements 

may include infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession 

arrangement for its entire useful life. 

c) Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to 

charge users of the public service, suct) rights are recognised and classified as 

"Intangible Assets" in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service 

Concession Arrangements. 

d) Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts 

are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised 

and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the 

company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable 

for the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is 

complete in all respects and when the company receives the completion certificate 

from the authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 
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e) An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or 

when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal. 

f) Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are 

recognised at cumulative construction cost. Till completion of construction of the 

project, such arrangements are recognised as "Intangible Assets Under 

Development" and are recognised at cumulative construction cost. 

g) The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement 

is the period from where the company is able to charge the public for use of 

infrastructure to the end of the concession period. 

h) Toll collection right is amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the 

date of addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of 

concession period. 

i) Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the 

effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

j) The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more 

often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not 

be recoverable. 

2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral 
part of the Company's cash management. 

2.9 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

J 

66



i. Provisions 

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a 
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, 
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others. 

II. Onerous contracts 

a) An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (Le., the costs 
that the company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received 
under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting 
from the contract, which is the lower of the co_st of fulfilling ' it and any compensation 
or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the company has a contract that is 
onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is 
established, the company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on 
assets dedicated to that contract. 

b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimates. 

iii. Contingent liabilities 

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which 
likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 
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b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

iv. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

2.10 Revenue Recognition 

i. The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with 

Ind AS -ff5'Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

ii. Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

iii. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration 

including escalation and liquidated damages. 

iv. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance 

obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

v. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a 

significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The 

company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using 

the expected value or most likely amount method whichever is better predict the amount. 

vi. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as 

revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

vii. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any 

of the following criteria is met: 
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• The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

entity's performance as the entity perform. 

• The entity's perfonnance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in 

progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

• The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance 

completed to date. 

viii. For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by 

measuring the progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete 

satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of 

actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance 

obligation. 

ix. Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where 

performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, 

which faithfully depict the Company's perfonnance towards complete satisfaction of the 

performance obligation. 

x. Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved 

either to the contract scope or contract price. 

xi. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added 

to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. 

Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while 

those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if 

additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing 

contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

xii. Contract balances 

• Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for 

goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by 

transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 

consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the 
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earned consideration that is conditional 

• Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of 

consideration that is unconditional (Le., only the passage of time is required 

before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of 

financial assets in section Financial instruments - initial recognition and 

subsequent measurement. 

• Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 

to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 

the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 

recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is 

earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company 

performs under the contract 

xiii. Revenue from toll collection 

The Company recognizes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price Le usage fee. 

Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

xiv. Other income 

• Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

• Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

• Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and 

right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract. 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 

i. At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 

the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the 

higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its 

value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 

not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of 

assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
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asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment 

loss, including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. 

iii. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or 

have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's 

recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 

a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 

impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset 

does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 

period. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 

i. Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 

includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out 

(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 

sale. 

ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot 

be ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter. 

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction 

work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss 

of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the 

contract as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not 

written off valued at cost. 
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iv. In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as 

per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above. 

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.13 Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 

charged to statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 

differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

2.14 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related 

Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­

term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of 

profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon 

International Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the 

Holding Company. 

2.15 Leases 
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The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if 

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 

consideration. 

i. Company as a lessee 

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make 

lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

A. Right-of-use assets 

• The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 

(Le., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 

adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 

of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold land acquired 

on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term 
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 

• The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 
• on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. 
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Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items 

recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax item~ are recognised in correlation to the underlyi 

B. Lease liabilities 

• At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities 

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. 

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) 

less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an 

index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. 

The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably 

certain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the 

lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as 

expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the 

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

• In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental 

borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 

the lease is not readily determinable. After th"e commencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the 

lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re­

measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease 

payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or 

rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an 

option to purchase the underlying asset. 

• The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities. 

c. Short term lease and leases of low value assets 

• The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 

leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (Le., those leases 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
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contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 

exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The 

Company furthe also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be 

over one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and 

charging them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a 

year to year basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases 

of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term . 

• The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 

116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been 

reclassified! regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116. 

ii. Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted 

for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of 

profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs-incurred in negotiating and arranging 

an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over 

the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue 

in the period in which they are earned. 

2.16 Current income tax 

• Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax 

regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable 

income for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. 

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it 

relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized 

outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax 

items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or 
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directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the · tax 

returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 

interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

• Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.17 Deferred tax 

• Deferred tax is provided using the liability method ng transaction either in OCI or 

directly in equity. 

• Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

• The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 

asset to be recovered. 

2.18 Operating Segment 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by 

the chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 

shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 

average number of shares outstanding during the period 
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In determining diluted earnings-per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.20 Foreign Currencies 

i. Functional and Presentation Currency 

• Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation 

currency of the company. 

ii. Transactions and Balances 

• Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange 

rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

• Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional 

currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for 

assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical 

cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

• Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting 

date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are 

presented in the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.21 Fair value measurement 

i. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

ii. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
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measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

iii. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 

in their economic best interest. 

iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 

it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

v. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

vi. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable 

vii. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
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viii. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each 

reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities 

which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting poliCies. 

ix. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 

of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

x. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 

given in the relevant notes. 

2.22 Dividend to equity holders 

Annual Dividend distribution to the company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the 

period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as 

liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend 

distribution, if any is recognized directly in equity. 

2.23 Financial instruments 

• A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 

assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 
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• For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

A. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

• A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are 

met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

• After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 

into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 

part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The 

losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally 

applies to trade and other receivables. 

B. Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

• A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 

outstanding . 

• Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as 

at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, 

impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of 

profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 
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recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest 

earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in 

statement of profit and loss using the EIR method. 

C. Debt instruments at FVTPL 

a) FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not 

meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at 

FVTPL. 

b) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

D. Equity instruments 

• All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 

instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 

instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such 

election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 

recognition and is irrevocable. 

• If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 

recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 

investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 

equity. 

• Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with 

all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

E. Impainnent of finandal assets 
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• Eel is ·the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the ·company in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (Le., 

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

• In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (Eel) model 

for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 

credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 

e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

c. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116 

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

e. loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPl 

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPl 

• The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 

on: 

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

• The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in 

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 

each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

• For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECl is 

used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 

lifetime Eel is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 

then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month 

EeL. 
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• Lifetime ECl are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events 

over the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECl is a portion of the lifetime 

ECl which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the 

reporting date 

• ECl impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 

as income! expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under 

the head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet 

presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 

lease receivables: ECl is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 

measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 

carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

• loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECl is presented as a provision in 

the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the 

expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which 

remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 

asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as 

the 'accumulated impairment amount" 

• The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) 

financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase! origination. 

F. Oerecognition of financial assets 

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 

similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash 
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flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks . 

and rewards of the ownership of the asset. 

b) The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / 

receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

• The company's financial liabilities include, trade and other payables, loans and 

borrowings, other financial liabilities etc. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

• The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 

below: 

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

• After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses 

are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well 

as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
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account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 

part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities 

• A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 

to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 

a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at 

the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 

109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

iv. Reclassification of financial assets 

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. 

After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity 

instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 

reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those 

assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident 

to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or 

ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies 

financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is 

the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The 
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company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains 

or losses) or interest. 

v. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. 

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale 

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their 

carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is 

considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or 

disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale 

will be withdrawn, and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. 

Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible 

assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as 

held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance sheet. 

b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 

disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be 

classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 

i. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for 

depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as 

held for sale, and 

ii. its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as 

held for sale. 

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment property 

and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when non-current 

assets held for sale criteria are no longer met. 
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2.25 Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial 

and adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 

0.50% of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.26 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 

• The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously 

evaluated by the company and are based on historical experience and various other 

assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events), that thecompany believes to 

be reasonable under the existing circumstances. 

• The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or 

that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the 

reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could 

differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were 

reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do 

not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial 

statements in the period in which they become known. 

• The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 

the reporting date, that have, a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual 

results could differ from these estimates. 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

• Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 

appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the 

receivables balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when 

management deems not be collectible. 

il. Contingencies 
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• In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 

against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based 

on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify 

reliably and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although 

there can be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is 

involved. it is not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial 

position of probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

• The impairment provision for financial asset$ are based on assumptions about risk of default and 

expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 

the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history, existing market 

conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

• Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business 

differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to 

such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 

recorded. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of 

such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and 

differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. 

Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the 

conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 

judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 

planning strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 
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• Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 

use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding 

sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less 

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF 

model. 

vi. Non-current asset held for sale 

• Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 

amount is to be recovered principally through a .sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 

probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is 

available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, 

and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. 

vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

• The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its 

incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 

the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the 

funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar 

economic environment. 

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as 

Lessee 

• The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or 

any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 

exercised. 

• The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company 

applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 

I 
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option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 

economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement 

date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 

circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the 

option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or 

significant customisation to the leased asset). 

ix. Revenue recognition 

• The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the 

company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

• These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require 

assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

• Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and 

estimation of project completion date: 

• Determination of stage of completion 

• Estimation of project completion date 

• Provisions for foreseeable loses 

• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and 

variations. 

• These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion 

of the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract 

costs incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where 

this would not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are 

included to the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable. 

When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 

recognized as an expense immediately. 

j 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED HcoHqrL Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant 4< Madiiru:fy Computm 9ffice Equipmcntl Fumlrurc: lit Fbcrurc:.a Vehiclea 

G[!!U !::1I[Q!iog Am!!lIut (Al !::!!al) 

At 31 March 2020 0.04 0.03 0.03 

Additions 0.01 

Disposalsl Adjustments 0.06 0.06 0.71 

Exchange (Goin) I Lo •• 
At 31 March 2021 0.06 0.10 0.04 0.03 0.71 

At 1 April 2021 0.06 0.10 0.04 0.03 0.71 
Additions 0.001 

Disposalsl Adjustments 

Excbange (Goin) I Los. 
At 3101 March 2022 0.12 0.10 0.04 0.03 0.71 

Ih:PR,iIDQO IDd impaimu:ot 
At 31 March 2020 0.03 0.01 

Depreciation charge for the year 0.01 0.06 0.002 0.003 0.17 

ImpaiIment 

Disposalsl Adjustments 0.01 0.01 0.07 

Excbange (Goin) I Loss 

At 31 March 2021 0.02 0.10 0.012 0.003 0.24 

At 1 April 2021 0.02 0.10 0.012 0.003 0.24 

Depreciation charge for the year 0.007 0.01 0.009 0.003 0.08 

ImpaiIment 

Disposalsl Adjustments 

Exchange (Goin) I Lo .. 

At 31s1 March 2022 0.05 0.11 0.021 0.006 0.32 

Net book value 

At 31st March 2022 0.07 (0.01) 0.02 0.02 0.39 

At 31 March 2021 0.04 0.03 0.03 0.47 

Noles:· a) Dill oj the Amtr ",.,,/ion.d abo .. , COmpllUTr, V.hit"s alia Plallt ""d M(lchi""Y j.,. Rs 0.8) Crom ( Gross Block) ,,,. i" the MIll. of th. holdi"g ((J1ItjJaf[) 

Foot Note.:-

- -- --.J ~ --- -- ------- - -- 'e as follows:-

D~tion 
Jlor the Year ended For the Yur eoded 

J 1st Mat 2022 31st Mat 2021 I 
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 0.11 0.25 I 

Imp:mment Loss 

Total 0.11 0.25 I 

(in Rs. crore) 

Total 

0.10 

0.01 

0.83 

0.94 

0.94 

0.001 

0.94 

0.04 

0.25 

0.09 

0.38 

0.38 

0.10 

0.48 

0.46 

0.57 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

4 Intangible Assets 

Gross Block 

Opening balance at 1 April 2020 

Addition during the year 

Capitalisation during the year 

Disposals I adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Addition during the year 

Disposals I adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 Mar 2022 

Amortisarion nnd fml':lirmem 

Closing balance at 31 March 2020 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales I adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales I adjustment during the year 

Closing balance at 31 Mar 2022 

Net book value 

At 31st March 2022 

At 31 March 2021 

Intangible assets under development 
Particulars 

As at March 31, 2022 
Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

As at March 31, 2021 

Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

less than 1 
~ear 

20.69 

20.69 

(in Rs. Crorc) 

l'lUQnglbll; :;lIIS~t!J 
lI¥IdeJ a lI'etQJ!BlCl1t 

20.69 

20.69 

20.69 

1·2 years 

I 

lisunngible~ 
(TO'n ~oad) 

~efer N(>tu ~ 

726.78 

0.83 

725.95 

725.95 

75.90 

41.48 

0.08 

117.30 

41.45 

158.75 

567.20 

608.65 

(in Rs. Crore) 

0[bL-l!o1aDt~~ 

C ftwunl) 

Rs in Crores 

Total 

20.69 

20.69 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

5 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

a) Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 
- Government Departments 
- Others 

Total- Other Financial Assets 

b) Considered Doubtful 
Total- Other Financial Assets - Doubtful 

Grand Total- Other Financial Assets 

I 

iliiooGJjtl 
(in Rs. Crore) 

0.14 0.14 
0.14 0.14 

0.14 0.14 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY UMITED 
Note. to Financial S12lemcnts (01' the Year ended 31st March. 2022 

6 DeraTed Tax tblicts and Income T:ax 
DiscJOsuIe puauant to Iod AS 12 "IncOlDC Tucs-
(a) The IruIIjor components of lncome t2x expc:nu ror the year ended 31,t M2I' 2022 and 3ut Mar 2021src : 

SNo , ~ 

Profit and Lou Section 
CUJ'r~JH income to:: 

Gurtnr income tlx clrArxe 
.'\t~.nnw.nt in rapeer of currmt ta.s: of previous )~r 
Dd'~d tax: 
Rd.& ci"nJ{ to u~njDOn.and terCb:l1 ortt:mpor.a,,' d&lli:~ 

Qthu Com prc.h md'I'C Income (OC r) Stcuon 
[ncome tax "lseed co itc~ recop.ilcd i.o OCI during the year. 
~e.t lou/{g.itn) on ~mea5urement$ of de6ncd belK6t puns 
Sec I.ou/(~} oa foceiYJI opcr.nw n mmjbiion 
Inc;OfIl(' IlIX expefU:CI t(1)otl1:d in the OCI leerion 

(b) Reconc:ili.ation of tu:: c:EpCnIIC and the &ccountiDc profit multiplied by India'. domatic his. n.tc for the ya.c euded Jllt Mar 2022 ad 311t Mar 2021 : 

.'\txuunlUat; pro.Gl bt fo~ -=orne ru: 
Coqx>r:ate tilx ate::IS per Income taX Ac~ 1961 

To&:;I: on Accounringpro6t(l) = (1) t (2) 
4 E~t afTas: Adjuslmcnts: 

(~ Adjuum~nts in leSpect of current income tax of prevK>us yeaD 

(i~ Utilisation of previously uncccOfl1\ised tal: 1osK'S 
(lu) Impact of Rate Diffi:rcntt 

(Iv) T~lL on Income eltetnPf from tu 

(v) ;:.tS,):dNiI!t., tl\tr: tire"," (9r ru !?!'tmomo 

-Other count£}" addition.a1 tu: 

-Other non-deducrible Cl(pe~ 

(VI) T~'C c.i5:ctoh·.uiuut other iu:m. 
lneom c CUt C$pen$.c raponcd in Ua c S~ Iaw:.nt of PrOfit lI.od Lon 

(c) Componeoll of deferred tax aneta IUId (li .. bi.litiel) rccogniled in the Ba.Lancc Sheet and Statement of Profit or Lou 

Property. Plam & Equipment (lnduding inlangible): Di~rence In book depreci:uion and income tu 
dcprcci:uion ...... 

Provisions 

Items disallowed u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 
Impact of e~ndirure chargr:d ro the ,tUement of proSt 2nd kns In the cunrnt }~r and earlier yeats 

but alkN.-abk foc In pu'})Ou:s on p2)"menr basis 

Fair valuarion of 6nanclal instrument! 

Unu(iliscd galn/lO:lS on FVfOC( equity s«uc:ities lind FVTPL Mutual funds 

Net deferred t2x alsctl!(liabilitics 

(8480) 

80. 
76.76 

om 

(75.73) 

(0,00) 

iliiOOGgti 

ro, <be. V ..... ewlCd 

FOf t11C- Ya r i&:ndcd 

(12.06) 
25168·/. 

9.07 

(L.. .lncnH'C' 

(14.07) 
25 168~/. 

CR.. in a .... ) 

14.81 

(264) 

(1217) 

0.00 

..... D(rrrrJT~ .....tmts-u· ... _I.fBJI.IJ·IUJI !.S:S;I.I..4".u.u bar ..... rutridn'- II" DrfwrrJT tC( u.Ja." ~ PPE _J l,,'-ib" ~ls lUll .anw.f _~ D1wrNT~#l.mIt(.Rs Jr Crwu b.u .. 16m ~ dI II 

.1II*r.f~.;.lalaiJbAta_h"P.&Y!·" 

(d) Reflected in the bmtu::e .h~l (I_ rnllo.,! 

Deferccd tu: lISSC:ts 

Defected tax li:lbilitv 
Deferred Tax ABet/ . bililiel et 

N ute.: Otbl'c'd ru lISsers and de~(red tu: liabilities h2ve been offset as they rcbte to the same governing laws. 

(e) Rec:oocili.tion of deferred tax (llabilitiel)/uaetl: 
As ott lbl I\brch.2022 

5.1'10. Pa.bcui;o,. 

P''OfCft!. Plant & Equ;pment (LnCluding intangible): Di~rencc In book dq:u«t;looo and LnCome tu 

cirp.a:cUtion 
:z Provisions 

Othc" 
Items disllUo\l.lt:d ufs 438 ofIncome Tn .-\ct, 1961 
Impact of expcnditu~ dl4l~d to the statement of pro6t and lossln the curccnt )Ur lind earlic, ~'elrs 
lrul lillou,'2ble foc tu: purposes on payment basis 

(, FlIic va1uation of 6rutncial instruments 

1 Unutilised gain/lo:ss on FVTOCI equity securiries and FVTPL Mutual funds 

AJ :u J t Man:h202t 

P':opcny. rrll.nl (\: Et}UIPmatf (tndl,lw'lJ I"'.I"~ Olffi: rcnc:c: rn book depreci::ation lind income tu 
cIep~ila fiOO 

~ Provisions 

Othc" 
Items dis .. lIow~d u/s ·BB of[ncomc Tax Act, 1961 

Impact of e~ndirure ch:ugcd to the stltement of pro6t and Joss in the current )'ClIC and e.adic.r ~'elrs 
bu, -allowable foc tlX purposes on p".Irment b-.Isis 

FlIir valUllt10n of 6nanc.al irutrumc.nts 

Unutili$Cd g.lln/lQSs on fYfOCl equiry securities and FVTPL Mutual funds 

j 

(75 .73) 

2&4 
7309 

(6092) 

6092 

~T",dln 

IU(.Onc:at of fMOGt 
ondloK. 

907 
(5.10) 
(J67) 

~rfiKdllt 

.!olllttDH'Dt oCproli, .... """ 
14.81 

(2.64) 

(1217) 

31 MII.rcb..20'22 

.a,I,1IO 

tlla.. in CnM'C) 

(SUO) 

8<» 
76.76 

O,(J() 

Ncl fiohncc 
As tI. l r., ~bn:h 202J 

-7573 

264 

nO'> 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 WOD8§tl 

7 Other Non-Cwrent Assets 

(Rs. in crore) 

Particulars As at 31st March,2022 As at 31st March 2021 

a) Capital Advances 

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset (Stage II of Toll Road) 13.37 

Total- Capital Advances 13.37 
Considered Good : Unsecured 13.37 

Total 13.37 

j 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements {or the Year ended 31st March 2022 

8.1 Current Financial Asset. - Trade Receivables 

P.articu11lrt1 

Unsecured coosid~red good (Refer Note 34C) 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Trade Receivablas - credit impaired 
Impainnent Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Tota) 

Trade Recelvabla Agalng Schedule 

Particulars 

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(II) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iiI) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(III) Disputed Trade Recaivables considered good 
(Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
craditrisk 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - cradit impaired 
Total 
Less :Impeinnent Allowances ( Refer note 14) 

Net Trade Receivables 

Pertlculers 

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considerad good 

(II) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - cradit impaired 

UCODS§fL 
(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31St Msu 2022 As af 31,t Mar 2021 

0.63 0.46 

0.11 

0.52 0.46 

Outstsndlng for the year ended March 31, 2022 from the due date of 
Totsl 

Unbllled Not Due 
payment 

Lesll than 6 6 months-1 
1-2 years 2-3 yeara 

More than 3 
IRs. In Crore) 

months vear years 

0.63 0.06 -0.06 0.63 
i 

-
-
-
-
-

0.63 0.06 -0.06 - . 0.63 
(0.06) 0.06 -

0.63 - - . - 0.63 

Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2021 from the due date of 
payment Total 

Unbmad Not Due 
Lass than 6 6 montha·1 

1·2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

IRs. In Crore) 
mOJlths year years 

0.46 0.46 

-
-
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

8.2 Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 

Balancu lllilh banks:" 
- On cua:ent accounts 
- Flexi Accounts 
- Deposits with origiml maturity of less than 3 months 

ilCODG§tl 

lM',U2022 

0.06 

1.53 

1.59 

(in Rs. Crore) 

0.07 

6.35 

6.42 

"Ollloj Ihtabove balana ojRr 1.59 C",m (prtViollsyear Rr 6.42 tfrJrrs), Rs 1.532 mJrrs (PrrviollSyear Rs 6.J53 tfrJrrs) pertain f(J ESCROW AIC which arr ttlrmark 
fond as per conassion agmment entmd lllilh NHAl 

I 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

8.3 Current Financial Assets - Loans 

Paniculacs 

A. U nsecured. cons idered good 
Staff Loans & Advances 

Grand Total 

8.4 Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

A. U nsecured. cons idered good 

Interest Accrued on : 
- Deposits with Banks/Flexi Deposit 

Total - Other Financial Assets - Good 

Grand Total- Other Financial Others 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at31s1 M"(Ir2022 

(in Rs. Crore) 

i\.s at 31stM~r2022 As .at 31st Mar 2021 

0.01 
0.01 

0.01 

Debts due by officers of the company, firms in which any director is a partner or private company in which any director is a 
member exceptJVs and Subsidiaries are Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil). 

Det."lil ~ of nmount due hum Directors: (in Rs. Crore) 
Particulars I As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 

Amount due from directors included in interest accrued on staff loans - -and advances 
Total I 

) 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 Uiloo6pl 

9 Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) (in Rs. Crore) 

PatticuJars As at 31st Mat 2022 As at 31st Mar: 2021 

Taxes Paid including IDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 0.10 0.04 

Current tax Assets (Net) 0.10 0.04 

I 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

10 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 
a) Advances Other than Capital Advances 

Advances to Contractors against material and machinery 

Advances to Contractors- Related Party- Holding Company 

Advance Recoverable from: 

- Sales Tax (including TDS) 

Less: Deposited under Protest 

- Value Added Tax 

- Goods & Services Tax 

- Service Tax input credit 
Security Deposits 

Interest Accrued on: 
Deposits & Advances with: 

- Contractors, Suppliers & Others 
Assets held for disposal 
Prepaid Expenses 
Fair valuation adjustment 
Lease Equalisation 

Total- Others 

c) Considered Doubtful 

Total - Considered Doubtful 

Grand Total 

As at 31st Mar 
2022 

0.21 

0.14 

0.35 

0.35 

UifOOG!!!! 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2021 
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IRCONSHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

11 Equity Share capital 

Authorised share capital 

15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.1O each 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital 

15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid 

r' h h Idl Promote. s s are 0 ng 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2021 

S.No 

1 

2 

S.No 

1 

2 

Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period' year 

Promoter Name 
No. of shares 

Ircon International Limited- Holding 15,00,00,000 
Company (IRCON) 

Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period' year 

Promoter Name 
No. of shares 

Ircon International Limited- Holding 
15,00,00,000 

Company ( IRCON) 

Details f)f~h31'ebll lders holding more Ihan 5% hares in Ibe Compau 

As at 31st Mar 2022 
Name of Ibe shareholder 

No. of Share % holding in Ibe class 

Ircon International Limited- Holding Company ( 15,00,00,000 100.00% 

Petjllle ofsbpreboldern holding in the com pQny 

Name of Ibe /ilwrch,oldol 

Ireon International Limited- Holding Company ( IRCON) 

Total 

As at 31st Mar 2021 

No. of Share 

15,00,00,000 

% holding in Ibe 
class 

100.00% 

As 111 311;[ M~r 202Z 

No.ofSb"rc 
% holdtng m the 

class 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

R econc ill' abono fth b e num ero equil), s h ares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the lCilr 

P9iti~rs 
Ilk at 31st Mnr 202Z. 

NQufshares Rs m crun: 
hlsued/ Sub.ccibcd and P"d up equilY C3piL'li outsmndmg at tbe bcgtntling of the j'e"" 15,00.00,000 150.00 

Add: Sh",c~ I.~ued during the y= -
Lc,,~ Sh",<:!O TIu), Bnck during the yc;uc - -
L",uctd/ Subscribcd and Paid up equilY CapiL,u CJU I'II'J1ding~t lhe end of the l'1!<tr 15,00,00,000 150.00 

iliiODGgti 

As III 31s1 r.w-
202.2 

150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

% oftotal shares 

100.00% 

% of total shares 

100.00% 

(in Rs. crore) 

150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

150.00 

% change 
during the 

period 'year 

NA 

% change 
during the 

period 'year 

NA 

As at 31st March 2020 

No. of Share % holding in Ibe 
class 

15,00,00,000 100.00% 

No.uf 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

15,00,00,000 100.00 

Ali 01 31St MM 2021 
No of shares .Rs 1.0 crure 

15,00,00,000 150.00 

-
- -

15,00,00,000 150.00 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

12 Other Equity 

Other Reserves 
Retained Earnings 

Total 

Movement as per below: 
Retained Earnings 
Opening Balance 

Add: Transfer from srn:p1us in statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves: 
Retained Earnings 

Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 

) 

(88.30) 

(88.30) 

(76.25) 

(12.05) 

(88.30) 

WOO8§!L . 
(in Rs. Crore) 

(76.25) 

(76.25) 

(62.19) 

(14.06) 

(76.25) 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

13 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

13.1 Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Secured: 
Ca) Loan from Holding Company(Ircon International Limited) (Refee note below) 

(b) Loan from State Bank ofIndia C Refee note below and note 15.1) 

Total 

~ 
(a) Terms & Conditions 

UiiODK!!!l 

(in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

AJI :u 31s1 Mar 2022 As ;).tJJSI MaL 2021 

490.07 
493.06 

493.06 490.07 

i) A Tean Loan of Rs. 722.11 croee had been santioned from the its holding company ItCon International Limited for meeting the total peoject cost as per the terms and condition 
of the agreement As on 1st April 2021 the Loan amount outstanding was for Rs 526 Croees. This entire Loan amount was repaid in the current financial year, by internal accruals 
generated through Toll Operations and by availing a fresh Loan from State Bank of India from MatCh 2022 by Loan agreement dated 17th February 2022 Out of the Fresh Loan 
availed for Rs 501 Crores ,Rs 2.66 Crores was repaid during the year and balance ofRs 499.86 crores was outstanding as on 31st March 2022. Out of the this amount ofRs 499.86 
crores, Rs 6.80 crores has been shown as current maturities of the Loan under Borrowings - Current( Refer Note 15.1) 

ii) Interest Terms 
The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25% w.e.f 28.03.2022 

iii) Terms of Repayment 
Term Loan shall be repaid in 11.5 years upto 30.09.2033, in quarterly instalments as per the schedule mentioned in the Loan agreement 

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in brief as under : 
(a) fIrst charge on all the Borrower's tangtble movable assets pertaining to the Project; 

(b) a first charge O\'er all accounts of the Borrower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Accounts and the sub-accounts (or any account in substitution thereof) or any 
other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement; 

(c) a fIrst charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Project including but not limited to goodwil~ rights, undertaking and uncalled capital present and future; 
(d) Assignment/Charge by way of Security in the following, both present and future: 
(i) all the right, tirle, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents; 
(u) the right, title and interest of the Borrower in, to and under all the Clearances; 
(til) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees and liquidated damages 
and performance bond provided by any party to the Borrower pursuant to the Project Documents; 
(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower under all Insurance Contracts pertaining to the Projec~ 

(d) An unconditional corporate guarantee by the promoter in favour of the Security trustee and an irrevocable and unconditional undertaking from the Promoter, to cover any 
shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dated 17.02.2022 

(e) The Company is not at default of either repayment of the loan or interest payment on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date. 

13.2 Other Financial Liability 
(in Rs. crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 
Deposits and Retention money 0.Q3 

Total 0.03 

I k 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial StatemenIB for the Year ended 31st Marcb 2022 

14 Pro" in"" 

P ortfcwllll'fi 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

Provision for Doubtful Assets 

Provision for scheduled major maintenance of Toll Road 

Less: Impairment Provision for Doubtful Assets (presented Sepaa.tely) 

Total 

Current 

NonCurrent 

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the requirements orInd AS 37 is as follows : 

14.1 Provision for Doubtful AsseIB : 

Paitic ulm 

As at 31-Marcb-2021 

Current 

Non Current 

Provision made during the year 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

(Exchange Gain) / Loss 

As at 31-Marcb-2022 

Current 
NonCurrent 

142 Other Provisions: 

Particulars 

A. at 01-April-2020 

NonCurrent 

Provision made during the year 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

As at 01-April-2021 

NonCurrent 

Provision made during the year for scheduled major 
rnamten2llCeAA. 

Less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

NonCurrent 

Demobilisation 
Corporate Social 

RcBJ><UHibifuy 

~ Protision for mojor mainlenon.. bas been providul in Ii .. aiJh Main/enon .. ManllOi for operoting olToU Rood 

I 

FOOl No (~ 

14.1 

14.2 

8.1 

Maintenance 

10.47 

lO.41 

12.23 

0.44 

23.14 

23.14 

iOiOO.qt1 

0.11 

23.14 10.47 

23.25 10.47 

0. 1'1 

23.14 10.47 

23.14 10.47 

(in Rs. crore) 

Doubtful DebIB Total 

0.11 0.11 

O.ll O.ll 
O.ll O.ll 

(io Rs. croce) 

Other Expense. Total 

10.47 

10.47 

12.23 

0.44 

23.14 

23.14 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

ilODRG!!f Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

15 Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

15.1 Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (in Rs. Crore) (in Rs. Crore) 

, 

~ 
, 
~ 

\-

Particulars 

Current Maturity of Long term Borrowings ( Refer note no. 13.1) 

Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 

Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 
(a) Contractor & Suppliers 

(b) Related Parties 

Total 

Notes: 
:\) Disclosures as re<Juired under Companies l\ct, 2013 / Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DC\'c1opment i\ct,2l1l1G (MSMED) ;tre provided in Note 36. 
b) Terms and Conditions and uther balances with rebled parties are disclused in Note 24. 

Trade payables Ageing Schedule 

As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 

G.HO 3S. ~.' 

6.80 35.93 

(in Rs. Crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 

lI,Ul lI . 2~ 

G.40 lI.17 

6.41 0.46 

Rs in Crores 

Particulars Un billed Not due Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2022 from the due date of 
Total payment 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 3 years More than 3 years 
Total oUlstanding dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6.41 6.41 
Di sputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Disputed dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and small enterprises -- --

Rs in Crores 

Particulars Un billed Not due Outstanding for the year ended March 31 , 2021 from the due date of 
payment Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 3 years More than 3 years 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises . 
Total outstending dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.46 0.46 
Disputed due. of micro enterprises and small enterprises . 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises -
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

15.3 Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related Party - Holding Company 

Amount Payable to Client 

Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 

Total 

16 Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory dues 

Total 

Notes: 

iliiOR8.ltl 
(in Rs. crore) 

1.53 0.65 

0.04 

1.76 1.74 

8.53 2.74 
11.86 5.13 

(in Rs. crore) 

fis .at 81St'Mar Z022 As at MGt Ntar 2U!I 

1.42 0.48 

1.42 0.48 

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST). TDS, Provident Fund and other statutory dues. 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

17 Revenue from operations 

Construction Contract revenue 

Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 

Revenue from Construction service ( Change of Scope and other 
works) 

Other Revenue 

- Amortisation of financial instruments 

- other Operating Revenue 

Total 

18 Other Income 

Interest Income: 
Interest on refund of income-tax 
Interest on other advances/Security Deposits 
Bank Interest Gross 

Others : 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

20.69 

120.75 

2.07 

0.35 

143.86 

F0r tne ~ear encled 3llSt Milr 
zon 

0.17 

(in Rs. crore) 

f.;er the y..ear endeQ 31~mal' 
t8-2'1 

110.43 

0.35 

110.78 

Fer th~vear 8flde4 31st Mar 
Z02'1 

0.06 

0.28 
0.17 _ ___ _ 0.28 

0.04 0.04 

0.21 0.38 
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

19 Project and Other Expenses 

I Particulars 

Worn Expenses ( Construction of Stage II) 

Worn Expenses ( Change of Scope Worn) 

Worn Expenses ( Other Worns - Holding Company) 

Concession fees to NHAI 

Toll operation and maintenance expenses 
Inspection, Geo Technical Investigation & Survey Exp. Etc. 
Rent - Non-residential 
Rates and Taxes 
Vehicle Operation and Maintenance 
Repairs and Maintenance 

- Office and Others , Power, Electricity and Water charges 
Insurance 
Travelling & conveyance 
Printing & stationery 
Legal & Professional charges 
Auditors remuneration (Refer Note Below) 
Advertisement & publicity 
Bank Charges and Other financial charges 

~~ 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 38) 

.C: ; ~. Miscellaneous expenses 

z,IOC' 
:Wi ,~" 
~-:'--;.:7::'::'-

r 

~ 

Provisions (Addition - Write Back) 
(Refer Note 14)- For Major repair and maintenance and doubtful debt ( 
Note 8.1) 

Total 

(i) Payment to Statutory Auditors: 

Particulars 

(a) Audit Fee - current year 
(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year 
(c) Fee for quarter1y limited review 
(c) Certification Fees 
(d) Travelling & out of pocket expenses: 

- Travelling Expenses 
- Out of Pocket Expenses 

Total 

PI:OJect EXP:811888 

For th'e ,yNr ended 51st 
Milr2022 

20.69 

1.79 

0.28 

22.86 

10.52 
0.66 
0.03 
-
-

0.05 
0.70 
0.92 
0.02 
0.01 
0.17 

--
-
-

0.01 

12.34 

71.05 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

0.018 
0.005 

0.01 

0.03 

FOJ.the Y,ea.r ended 
31st· Mar 2.021 

-
-
-

20.72 

7.20 
0.33 
0.03 
-
-

0.03 
0.71 
0.34 

--
0.10 

-
-
-
-

0.18 

10.47 

40.11 

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2021 

0.020 
0.005 

0.03 

iliiOOG.ltl 
(in Rs. crore) 

Other E~n.88'~W;;'li:!';;;.::,;,:,;:,.: ... , 

For the, ,year, ended '31st For tfie year endeCl 
&{ar2022 ,31St M{lr 2021 

- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

0.008 0.01 
0.028 0.02 
0.02 0.05 

0.002 0.07 
- -
- -

- -

0.06 0.15 
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20 Employee Remuneration and Benefits (Refer Note 28) (in Rs. crore) ; 

For the year ended 31 st Mar 2022 For the year ended 31st Mar 2021 

Particulars 
Foot 
Note Other Other 

Total Operating (AdminIstrative) Total Operating (Administrative) 

Salaries, wages and bonus 1.48 0.14 1.62 1.32 0.12 1.44 
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.20 - 0.20 0.18 - 0.18 
Retirement Benefits 0.12 - 0.12 0.10 - 0.10 

Total 1.80 0.14 1.94 1.60 0.12 1.72 ~ 

, 21 Finance Cos1 (in Rs. crore) 

Particulars 
Foot For the year ended 31st Mar For the year ended 31st Mar 
Note 2022 2021 

Interest Expense - 38.09 - 41.51 
Other Borrowing Cost 

- Bank Guarantee & Other Charges 2.98 -

Unwinding of discount on'provisions 0.44 -
Total 41.51 41.51 

-- - - -

22 Depreciation, amortization (in Rs. crore) 

~ Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 31st Mar I 

31 st Mar 2022 2021 
Property, Plant and equipment 0.11 0.25 
Intangible Assets 41.45 41.48 

Total 41.56 41.73 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Umited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 

Note:-23 

A. Fair Value Measurements 

(i) Category wise classification of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in these financial statement and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The Lhree Levels are defined based on the observability 
of significant inputs to the measurement, as follo'NS: 

Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mar1<.ets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included 'Nithin Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

a)The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31 st mar 2022 are as follo'NS: 

On Rs. oror.) 
FljrValue 

Le ... I'3 / Lovel1 !..aval2 
p.rtlculan 

Fina.ncial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL') 
rmrl! 5lment In Mutual Funds 
TOI::lI 
Flna.nai:al Ass_tits at AmorUted Co.st 
rllinvestments 
(ii) Loans 
lIij etn., fjn aneJ.1 As.ets 

Total 

I 

I 

I 
0,14 
0.14 

lln Rs. aro",) 
FalrV.I ... 

!:aVe! J I Lovell Lo.vall 
Particulars 

Conv"", Value 
Financial Uobiiltics at Amortized Cost 
Ii) Borrowings 
li6) Othe, Fin.nclal Uabllitl •• 
Tot. I 

b) The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31st Mar 2021 are as follows: 

499.86 
'1 .89 

511 .15 

I 

On Rs. en" .. ) 
falrV.luo 

Lev.13 1 Level 1 Lev.12 
Particulars 

e.,..y[nlI Value 
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL') 
In\lcstmcnt in Mutual Funds 
Total 
FIn;!nc l.1 As •• ts at Amorlitod Cost 
(i) Investments 

I~:~ ~~~~ Finnnclol As .... 
Totnl 

0.00 
0.15 
0.15 

fin Rs. erorol 

I 

I 

FairYalue 
Lovel31 Lov.11 Lev.12 

Particulars 
Carrying Val.,. 

Flnancl.1 Ll.blliti~ •• tAmortlzod Cost 
(i) Borrowings 
Iml 0111. , Fmancia! Uablfdi • • 

526.00 
5.13 

Tot.1 531.13 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short­
term maturities of these instruments 

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction bet:Neen W'illing parties. Methods and assumptions 
used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for the financial year 2020-21 . The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values 

o The fair value ofinvBstments in mutual fund units is based on the Net Asset Value ('NAV) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV 
represents the price at which the issuer 'Nil! issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors 

ii) The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in these financial statements are at reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not 
anticipate that the carrying amounts lM)uld be significantly different from the values that Yw'Ould eventually be received or settled, 

iii) The carrying amounts of current financial assets and current financial liabilities approximate their fair value mainly due to their short term nature, 

" During the financial year 2021-22 and 2020-21, there were no transfers bel'Neen Level 1 , Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements, 

B. Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's principal financial assets include loans to related parties, trade and other receivables, and 
cash and short-term depoSits that derive directly from its operations. The Company's activities expose it to some of the financial risks: mar1<.et risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

a) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value offuture cash flows of a financial instruments 'Nil! fluctuate because of changes in mar1<.et prices Mar1<.et risk comprises Foreign currency risk and Interest rate risk. 
Financial instruments affected by mar1<.et risk includes borro'Nings, uade receivables, trade payable and other non derivative financial instruments. 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk 
The company operates domestically and is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk (Since receipts & payments are received in Indian Rupees) • 

(ii) Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments wll fluctuate because of change in mar1<.et interest rate The company manages its interest risk in accordance with the 
companies policies and risk objective. Financial instruments affected by interest rate risk indudes deposits 'Nith banks. Interest rate risk on these financial instruments are very low as interest rate is fix for the 
period of financial instruments~ The Company has a floating interest rate bearing loan the interest sensitivity @ 50 basis points of the same is given below. 

Partfculan; 31~Mu·22 J1·Mu·21 
RlJ In CrnrD.J Pro Tli1x Post T:ilIII: Pr'D TOIX P05t Tax 
InlB""t JiJI>l5- loa08" 50 basis In15 50 b O. 0.00 .53 ,97 
Inle"" I ". .... D ·eo basi. Is b 0.00 0;00 -2.63 -1 97 

b) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principalty from the Company's receivables from 
customers and investment Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as 'Nell as credit exposure to dients, including outstanding accounts receivable The maximum exposure to 
credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. currently company has dealt with NHAI (National 
High......ay Authority of India) only therefore company have minimal credit risk. 

j 

I 
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Trade and other receivable 
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer~ The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in 'Nhich 
the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment, 

The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from top three revenue segments of construction revenue, construction under SCA and Toll receipts 

Particulars 
J1-1«o,·22 

ReVifn ue from theic til e vonue stma 143.85 110.79 
143.86 110.79 

Exposure to Credit Risk 

PlrtieUion 
Arumchll Assets for which allowance is measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (LECL) 

Non Current Investments 
Non Current Loans 
Other Non Current Financial Assets 
Current Investments 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Other Bank Balances 
Current Loans 
Other Current Financial Assets 

Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using Simplified Approach 

Trade Receivables 
ConltaolA_ts 

Somm.uy of change In 1055 aUOWrilnC-BS m~.asurod u51ng Simplifi~d :aPProRch 

As aUlst Mar 2022 

014 

159 

0004 

0.64 

As al31s1 Mor2D21 

0.14 

6.42 

0.00 
0.01 

0.46 

P.rt1DulirS As.t3 slMor20i!2 As 01"1151Mor2021 
0"" nln9 Al low.n.1lS . 
Provided during the year 0.1'1 
Utilization during the year 
Imoun' \Millon"''' 
Oloslng Allow:lnco!li 0.11 

During the year, the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs NIL (31 March, 2021 : Rs, Nil) 

Summary of ch:ilngo in loss allowances measured using Lifetime EKpactod Credit Losses tLECL} approach 
PllIffouiors- \f;S at 31st ""r 0:12 As .t 31Sf Mar 2021 
Opening Allow~na.os 
Provided during the year -
Utilization during the year . 
Amount written-off -
fExcl1anQB <>Oin) I Lo •• 
CloSlina Allowllillnc4l's 

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period During the year, the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs NIL. 

e) Uquidity risk 
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines, The Finance department regularly monitors the 
position of Cash and Cash Equivalents vis-a.-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities and maintenance of Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are considered wtli1e 
reviewing the liquidity position. 

The senior Management of the Company oversees its investment strategy and achieve its investment objectives. The Company typically invests in 8ank Flexi accounts and Fixed deposits with Govemment 
Banks, The primary objective of minimising the potential risk of principal loss, . 

The table below provides details regarding the significant financial liabilities as at 31 st Mar 2022 and 31 st Ma"r 2021 

fin Rs. croral 
Poitl"Ulors AS oo-:l.lsI M.&r 2022 

Lus than 1 Veo, 1-2~ ...... 2. Veo .... 1m! aboY. 

Borrowings 6.80 4.28 48878 

Trade payables 6.42 

Other financial liabilities 
11 88 

!Rs. in ororol 
ij PlrtfoWIJT '~onj1st Mar202.1 

lJosdhln I v.... 1-21~' 2. VN.,.·.riiI.bov. 

Borrowings 35.93 60.36 429.71 
Trade payables 0.46 

Other financial liabilities 5.1 4 

d) Excessive risk concentration 
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that muld cause their ability to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, polrtical or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a 
particular industry 

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidefines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfofio. Identified concentrations of credit 
risks are controlled and managed accordingly. 

C. Capital Management 

-

-
-
-

The objective of the Company is to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability to continue as a going concem so that company can continue to provide maximum retums to share 
holders and benefit to other stakeholders" Further, company manages its capital structure to make adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the financial covenants. 

Company has taken a term loan Rs 579.59 crore (Sanction Rs]22.11 crore) upto the FY 2021-22 (Outstanding as on 31 .32022 Rs NIL) from its holding company to finance its project The loan was repaid 
and a fresh loan was taken from Stale Bank of India fa Rs 502.51 crores in March 2022. 

Debt E.qiJity Ratio ,. an Rs. ororo 
Particulars As4Ul.t Mar 2022 
Borrowings (Nole No. 13.1 & 15.1) 499.86 526.00 

Long Term Debt 499.86 526.00 

Equity (Nola No. 11) 150.00 150.00 

Olhar Equity (Nola No. 12) (88.30) (76.25) 

Total Equity 61.70 73.75 

Debt Equity Ratio B.10 7.13 

t 
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!rcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
N !lte. to Pinancial Statements for the Ye ... nded 3ut March 2022 iIiiJ. ra./tl 
Note:- 24 DetKils of Related Party Tran.action. during the year 

. ~- -- . -~ 

'l\f-~ ora.Wed Tralllfaccion (RA.) Ou,*"'n~ Amounc 
Parti""Ia.· 

Party POi' the P .!lll.d~ut Por the~r c;aclcd'3bJ 
~ atl1at;M .. ~, .Iu a.1 3111t M ad02l Mar 20.22 MIIr2021. 

In_Im.n, in Equity - - 1,5000 00 000 1500000 000 

1.0.'" (5.26,00 00.000) 38 15,40,000.00 5.26 .• 00,00,000 
[nt .... , Panbl. on Loan . 
Recoupable ad....,c. )liven 13,36,66,183 13,36,66,183 -
MIDney withheld 4,34,334 

Ircon 
Other Payable. - 6,40,17,813 17,35,193 

IntematioDal 
Interest Payable on Loan - - -

Limited 
.oh.mee. 

Wow Conttact • Excl GST u expense 28,47,770 -
Wow Contract (COS) Escl GST IS cxpc ..... 1,78,89,426 , Wow ContIaCt • Excl GST _copilllfucd 17,81,01,818 -
Ren, Excluding GST .. ""Pense 2,49,038 2.31.672 
[neeces, on Loan as an espens. 37,71,36,988 41,50,69035 

-
,~ 

~ 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 st March 2022 

Note:- 24 Related Party Transactions 
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under: 

a) List of Related Parties 
(i) Holding Company 

Ircon International Limited 

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Board of Directors 
Name 
Shri Yogesh Kumar Mishra 
Shri Shvam Lal Gupta 
Shri A K Goval 
Shri D K Sharma 
Shri A K Goyal 
Shri Parag Verma 
Smt Ritu Arora 
Shri Masood Ahmad Najar 
Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda 
Shri Surajit Dutta 

Designation 
Chairman w.eJ 13.05.2021 upto 01.10.2021 
Chairman upto 13.05.2021 
Chairman w.eJ 01.10.2021 
Director upto 02.08.2021 
Director upto 01.10.2021 
Director w.eJ 29.12.2021 
Director w.eJ 13.05.2021 
Director w.eJ 02.08.2021 
Director w.eJ 01.04.2022 
Director upto 31.03.2022 

Other Members Identified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP) 
Name Designation 
Shri Masood Ahmad Najar Chief Executive Officer upto 02.08.2021 
Shri Atul Kumar Chief Executive Officer w.eJ 03.08.2021 
Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta Chief Financial Officer upto 01.07.2021 
Shri Vinay Kumar Ahuja Chief Financial Officer w.eJ 01.07.2021 till 31.03.2022 
Smt Rachna TomaI Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 01.04.2022 

Company Secretary 
Name Designation 
Ms Iti Matta Company Secretary 

j 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 st March 2022 ilCooqtl 

b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company are as follows: (Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Parllculars F."or the year eJ1ded 
3i1sll',{l1ta1"!2iIll! 

RIi 'tI;I . .'~rlf~ 
a'~~n:d~1 

1 Short tenn employee benefits 0.95 0.65 
2 Post employment benefits 0.14 0.10 
3 Other Iong-tenn employee benefits 0.02 0.02 
4 Tennination benefits 

5 Silting fees 

Total 1.11 0.76 

Transactions with related parties are as follows: (Rs. in crore) 

s,1!II>. ~1lI1'O Qr __ lItIDn !Name QrMa"'~ Nature of Rer tlfe ~aar enod 'Por Ih'e ~rtiji.ilmt 
retatlonshlp ~ I\1lJtVI'I 2~ 3~ -fCIl iI/ill 

1 Sate of goods and services 
1.1 Contract Revenue Ireon International Limited Holding Company - -
1.2 Rent Income Ircon IntematJonal Limiled Holding Company - -
2 Purchase of goods and services lreon International Limited WorK Expenses Holdin!! ComDanv 19.88 -
3 

Reimbursement of Deputation Staff Expenses, 
Ireon InlemaUonal limited Holding Company 0.02 0.02 

Rent & Other Misc. Expenses (Income) 

4 Interest Expense 
4.1 Interest Expense on Loan Ircon International Limited Holding Company 37.71 41.51 
5 Repayment of loans lreon International Limited HQldiIJ9 Com~any 526.00 (38.15) 
6 Advancesl Loans Received Ireon International Limited Holdina Company - -
7 Any Other transaction not covered above Ireon International Limited Recoupable Advance Holding Company 13.37 -

j 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 UCoo.qn 

c) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows ' (Rs in crore) 

I(attlre of As 111 A.at S.No. Naturij~ctt~ l!IlIlftI)iJf l~@ed ,pll~ 
tBlilt'follliftijJ 3'lstlMaroli. Z022 31 st litaml1, 2Q2~ 

1 Equity Received ( Liability) Ircon Intemational Limited Holding Company 150.00 150.00 
4 Amount recoverable other than loans 

4.1 Advance and Claims Recoverable lreon Intemational Limited Holding Company 13.37 . 
2 Borrowings Ircon International Limited Holding Company - 526.00 
3 Amount Payable towards 

3.1 Trade Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 6.37 -
3.2 Other Payables lreon International Limited Holding Company 0.03 0.17 
3.3 Money withheld Ircon International Limited Holding Company 0.04 

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

(ii) Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free. 

(iii) Outstanding balances of related parties at the year~nd except borrowings are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These 
balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free. 

(iv) The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial 
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

(v) IrconSGTL had five Part-time Directors during the financial year 2021-22, nominated on the Board by the holding company, do not draw any remuneration 
from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors. 

j -

-
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna ToUway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2022 UiiOHS.ltL 
Note:-25 Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) 

Public-to-priyate sen-ice concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with '\ppendix "C"- Sen-icc Concession Arrangements to Ind AS-115-"Rel-enue from 
Contract with customers". This SCA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out below are met: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which sen-ices the operator must pro,-ide with the infrastructure, to whom it must pro,-ide them, and at what price; and 

b) The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement. 

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receil-es the right to charge users of the public sen-ice, prm-ided that these charges are conditional on 
the degree to which the service is used. 

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair yalue of the sen-ice prm'ided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the 
operation. They are then amortized Ol-er the term of the concession. 

Ircon Shi'-puri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered into a sen-ice concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) 
dated 15th June 2015 in terms of which NHAI (the grantor) has authorized the company to deye!op, finance, design, engineer, procure, construct, operate and maintain 
the Project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna Section and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its 
completion. In terms of the said agreement Ircon Shi'-puri Gum Tollway Limited has an obligation to complete construction of the project of four l=ing of Shil-puri 
Guna section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose li,-es ha,-e expired. 

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be transferred back to National 
Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and IrconSGTL ha,-e right to terminate the agreement if they are not 
able to Cure the el-ent of default in accordance with such agreement. 

The Company recognizes revenue and cost in accordance with Ind AS 115 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Company measures contract 
re'-enue at the fair value of the consideration receiyable. During the arrangement's construction phase, the Company's assets of 725.90 crores (representing its 
accumulating right to be paid for prm-iding construction sen-ices) is classified as an intangible assets (license to charge user of the infrstructure), which was completed in 
2018-19. The lInd Phase of the Toll Road has also commenced construction and upto 31-03-2022 an amount of Rs 20.69 Crores has been shown under Intangible 
Asset tinder de,-e!opment. The Phase II is expected to be completed by 22-05-2022Th. Company btJJ remgni<,!d nil profil on .. anilnidion ofinlangible aJie/J IInd,r im;,,, tYJnainon 
offangemml . Th, R£I"nlle remgni;;;:d in relation 10 fflnJ1nMion ofin/"ngibie amls IInder sem,'e mn,uJlon arrang,menl repm,nls Ihe ja;r t"W' of im;ClJ prol;ded loward! mnslnldion of in/angible 
tJJillJ IInder Jm;ce tYJntuJlon offang,mln/, The operation of toll road has commenced from 7th June 2018 and the company has recognised usage fee as re,-enue of Rs.120.75 
Crores ( last year Rs 110.44 crores) from operation of toll road for the Year ended 31.03.2022. 

Concession fee and its premium is seen as being paid for earning the rel'enue and is treated as a charge against rel-enue. During the period concession fees of Rs 22.86 
Crores ( Last year Rs 20.72 Crores) to NHAI has been paid as per terms of the concession agreement, Usage fee collected o'-er and above the traffic cap as per the 
concession agreement is termed as excess fee. This SCA is due to be renegotiated as per clause number 28 and 29 of the concessionaire agreement. 

Construction Contracts 

In terms of the disclosure required in Ind AS -115 "Reyenue from Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet 
date are as follows:-

P:uticul:U's 

Re,-enue recoi,'Tlized from construction sen-ices 

Re,-enue recognised from toll-Usage fee 

Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/Loss 

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 

j 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

20.69 

120.75 

20.69 

Amount in Rs Crorcs 

As at 31s1 Mar~021 

110.43 
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Ircon Shivpuri GunaTollway Limited 
HCOHqo Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 

Note:-

Note:-

26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" 
There has been no material change in the significant accounting policies in the current financial year in comparison with last year, which would 
have any impact on the presentation of the financial statements. 

27 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 
During the year the Company has changed the accounting policy related to "Dividend". There is no impact on the profotability of the Company, 
and the revised accounting policy is as below and amendments are highlighted in Bold: 

Proposed amendment in Accounting Policy 
Dividend 
Annual Dividend distribution to the Company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the period in which dividend is approved by the 
shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as liability on approval by the Board of Duectors. Dividend payable and corresponding ta.'< on 
dividend distribution if any, is recognized direcdy in equity. 

j 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

WODG!tl Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 

Note:-

Note:-

28 Employee Benefits 

29 

The employees working for lreon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (ISGTI) "the company" are posted on deputation / secondment and are on the 
rolls of lreon International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF contributions, pension contributions, gratuity, leave encashment and other 
retirement benefits have been accounted for on the basis of invoices / debit advises from its holding company. The provision for gratuity and other 
retirement benefits of employees on deputation in terms of Ind AS-19 is being made by its Holding Company as per its accounting policies. 

Provident fund contribution and pension contribution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by the holding company with its 
P. F. Trust 

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 
NIL 
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[rcon Shi\'puri Guna ToUv.-ay Limited 

Notes to Fin:mcial Statements for the year cnded 31st M :uch 2022 iliioosJtl 
Notc:- 30 Earnings Per Share 

Disclosure ~ per Iod AS 33 'Earnings pec ,harc' 

B;'\$ic EPS i~ c;1IOJlated by di\'iding the profit for the y,-":lr Jttribuublc to equi~' holder:; by the weighted a\ "r.l,~ numbC'r of equity slu[("S outstmding durmg the r,-"'lr. 

Diluted EPS is calOJb.tcd b~' di, iding: the profit for the YC'J.r l.ttribut:\b1c to thc equity holder:; J.fler con~idrring the eff,-'ct of dilution b),weighh:d ;m:~r.lge number of equity ~h;l.[(."S (lutslLJ1din~ during 
the) CJ.C plus the weighted an,'r.1gr.: number of equity shlres tln,t would be i~~ued on com'cr'Sion of III th~ dilutin'! po tcnti,ll r.:quity sharcs into equity shln":" . 

() Basic and diluted t'-~J.!S. per share (in RL) 

Forth~ year For !h. y.ar 
P.r1icuJ"", NOI~ ~oded Jlat end.d 3101 

Much 2022 M.rch2021 

Profit attribubblc to E uin' hoh..ler.; (It .. , in crore Co;) (12.03 (14.06) 
\X' .:.ie.htl,'d :1n:r:l j!e numbt.'T of equio.· sh.l.ft."s for Ba:-:ic MId Dllute .. 1 EP$ (ii~ 13.00 13.00 
El mmcs per slure (DJ.S;c) (O.HO (0.~4 

Elm;n~ ~y share (Diluted) CO.HO (0.94 
Flce v:\luc per slure 111 .00 10.00 

.(ii) Profit attributable to equitY shareholders (uj.ed as owoU',nor) (RJ. tl".l croce) 

For th~ year For !h. y.ar 
Par1icui2nl eod.d31s1 end.d 3101 

M.rch2022 M.rch2021 

Profit for tile )('3r:lS pC!' St:ttcmcnt of Profit :lnd Los~ -12.05 .14.0(, 
Profit :1ttribul:1blc to EQuitv holdcr5 of the C()m..p.~':II u~ed for computinp' EPS: (12.05) (14.06) 

iii) Wc.i2h(l!d U\'U..1g,e. number of equity shares (lUed as denomlruuor) (NOL) 

For the y.ar For "'e y.ar 
Par1icularo eodedJIoI eoded31a1 

March 2022 M.rch2021 

OP<'llin~ balance of issucd cquin' shares 1 ~ 15 
e quit .... sharL'S issued during: the "L":lr 

W<.ightc.lavcrage numb«of equity .har •• for computinj: Basic EPS 15 15 
Dilution Effect: 

,\Jd: \'.;'ei rhted :l"cra "e numbers of potcntiJ.1 CQuit't, ~ h:lrL'S outst:lndin~ dUCLn~thc \'C1r 

Wei,ehted avera,e-e number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS 15 15 

Notc:- 31 Impairment of Assets 
In compli:mce of lnd AS 36 "Impaicmcnr of Assets", the Compa.ny has [c\~c\\'cd the assets at yc;u-cnd for indication of lmpalrmcot loss, if any, as pcr the accounting policy of the 

Company, As the[e is no indica.tion of imp<\Jm1ent, no impa.ianent loss has been recognised during the year, 

Notc:- 32 Provisions, Contingencies and CommirmcnlS 
(i) Provisions 

The natuce of provisions provided and movement in provisions dueing the ye.ac as per Ind AS 37 "rovisions, Conringent Liabilities and Contin~ntAsscts' ace disclosed in Note-14 

(ii) Contingent Liabilities 

DL,Sciosurc of C bill ontUlt:tentI...u bel 11 pre: Ind AS 37 'PJ;ovuiom, CootlngmrJ:..bbilitie and Connnittru Assets' is as Wlder. 

<Jaims sewed during th~ y~2I' 

FOOl 
& at 31st Addition 

".r1icuJ .... March during lh~ OUlofth. 
OucoC 

TOlal Claims 
Notc addition 2020 year opeoiag 

during"'. 
Settled duriag 

balaace tb~ year 
year 

.) Claims ~ains( the Company nOt aeknowlcdgocd as debts: - . 

b) Guarantees (excluding financial guaratccs) issued by the company on behalf of - -
c) Othcr money for ""Uieh company is contingent liable -

. - - -
(iii) Commitmcnts 

As '131sc 
March 2021 

-

-

-

Particulars Foot Note As at Jist Mac 2022 As al 31s, Mar 2021 

a) Capital Commitments 
Estim:ncd <lmount of contrJCU rcmJining fO be cxcOltcd on c:.IpitJl :Jccounr (nct of .ld\'Jncc) :1nd not pro\;dcd for: 37.1H 112.12 

b) Oth~r Commitments 

ConccsslinJre fc(·s.p.lpblc to >JHAI till end ofConccssion;]lrc pcriod of the Toll ROld (rcf(T ~otc?..J SCA) 4X3.0? 505 A& 

520.20 618.00 

FOOl Note: 

ca... in crore\ 

S.No Capital Commitments As at Jist Mar 2022 As at 31 .. Mar 2021 

ESt1mltcd lmount of contr.lctS remainin~ to be cx('cutcd on Property. Plant wd EqulpmC'flt 

Estim.lted lITlount of contrJ.ctS remaining to be executed on Im'cstment Property 

Estimated lmount of C(Jntr.lCtS remaining to be cxcOJted on Inta.n~ble .. \s sets under de\'clopmcnt 37.16 112. 12 
Total 37.18 112.12 

/ 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 
ilifoOGJll 

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting 

The Company is opemting in only one opemting Segment and hence disclosure as per Ind As 108 " Opemting Segment" is not applicable 

/ 
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Ircon Sb.ivpuri Guna Tolhvay Limited 

Notcs to Fin:mci.:li Statcments [or the ye.:lr cnded 31st M.:Irch 2022 WOOSftl 
Note:- 34 Re\'enuc from contr.lctwith customers 

A. Disaggregation of Re\'cnue 

Set out below i,; the dis.IFJ.:,"'Ceg,ltion ofrlle Camp.my's [e\'enue from contr,lct,; with customers intr) opcr.lting srgmC11t ;lIld typc of product Of SC[\ ices: 

(Rt in aun:) 
For 1h< l-.:orfdlli'd JilItM'-,.q;!> 2l)22 

ReV1:nue as per Iod AS 115 
Method (or measuring 

Type ofProduCl or Services performance oblig:lbon Other 
Tat:alas perSlatementoC 

Revenue 
Profit and Loss /Segment 

Dosmestic Total Input Method Output Method Reporting 

fU.hi.-.I't',f - -
Hi.cllu·o! \' 1-l386 143.86 143.86 0.21 144.07 

Eh:ctl.lnl -
Bulldil'l): .-

Q m.n 

Total 143.86 143.86 143.86 0.21 144.07 

Out of the tot.t! r<.'yenue recognijed under Ind AS 11.5 during thc yc,lr, R. 1277 Crore is recognised o\'er .1 period of time md Rs 121 31 C((lre recognised point in time. 

(Its in ccon::) 

For lit< y ....... dod J I .. M.td.1Z02l 

Type of Product or Senrices Revenue as per Iod AS lIS 
Method far mea.9uring 

0 .... , Tolal u per Stuement of 
performance oblig:ltion 

ReTenuc 
Profit and Lose /Segment 

Dosmestic Total Input Method Output Method Reporting 

tt.iJw," -
H idl\\';l\' 110.78 110.78 110.78 0.38 111.16 

Electrical .-

Ouildin~ 

Others -
Total 110.78 - 110.78 110.78 - 0.38 111.16 

Out of the total revenue rccognised under Ind· AS 115 during the year, Rs NIL is recognised over a period of time and Rs. 110.78 crare recognised point in time, 

B. Re\'enue from Monthly p,l~~es issued for Toll to \'ehicles Jre i~sucd;.ls per rcquirement of the customers, the entire ;unount of which is booked as rc\'enue on rl1e date of such tLlnS,lction., Such monthlr 
pJsses :ue non rch.muahie in nature 

C, Cau l.riilC'lb,ll l.:lJ.lI:a 

Particulars 

Tr,lde Rccei\'Jble~ (:,:ote 8. 1) 

Contr,lct A~sets 

Contr,lct Li.lbilitics 

(h in ""'''') 

&:al NJat 

31" Mon:h, 20~ 31 .. M.rcb, 2021 

0.52 0.46 

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the customer profile includes N3tionaJ HighWlly Authority of India (NHAI) and Toll Collection Agency. The Comp:my's aV1!ng"e project execution cyt:le is 
around 2+ to 36 months , General parment teans include p.lyments for utili!") shifting rcimbursements and chmgc in scope of work mutually :lgreed upon if any, with a credit period rJnging from 60 to 
180 d:IYs 0( when rlle work I:> certified Parments also includes Toll receipts for u"e of Toll collected by the Toll Collection ~\gcncr for the Company. Project executed by the Comp,my i~ under BOT ( 
built opeLlte tr,Ulsler) model lind the pJrmcntj arc on account of Toll Collection and additionJ.l works by NH.:\I, if any During the year.1n ;unount ofRs 0 12 Crores h:IS bcen pro\ 'ded for as prO\'ision 
lor doubtful debt, which relates to the rent.t1 of MIS Synergy Corp on account of rcnt during thc lockdm\TI pcriod. 

(ii) Contract ..:\sscrs arc reC(Ib'llised o\er rllC period in which se[\-ices .Ire performcd to represent the Comp,my's right to considerJtiun in exchange for goods Of sc[\,ices tr,Ulsfcrfed to the rustomer_ It 
includes l>.l.b.nces due from CUjtomers under constructIOn contr.l ct~ thJt ;lnsc when the Companr rCCCi\'Cs p.l~'mcnts from customcrs .IS pcr terms of thc contrJ.cts ho\\ e\'er the rc\'enue I:> recognised O\'er 
thc period under input method _\n~' amount pre\'iouslr rccognised;1:> ,1 contract ;.Is~et i~ rCc\Jssitied to trJde recei\'.lbles on s.ltisCaction of the condition attached i e. fUturc sC[\'ice willch is necessJf)' to 
achieve the billing milestone 

Movement in contract b.:lbnces d uring the year (Rio in c-rore) 

A .. , 
31st Much, 2021 

Particubn Au, 
3u, Much, 2022 

Contr.lct assct;u the Begmnmg o t the year 

Contr;.lct asset;1{ the end of the ye.l[ 

Net increase I decrease 

(Iii) IIontract liabilities r:ebting to construction Contract3 ~ balances due to rustomen, these arise ~ a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to d3te under the input method. and 
3dnnce received in long te:nn construction contract!, The :unount of Adnnce received gets adjusted over the construction period as and when invoicing is made to the cusromer.D 
o 

Particulars 
As., 

Ju, Man:h, 2022 

ContrAct li.lbilities at the b~nning of the YCJr 

Contr.lct li;.lbilities at rlle cnd of the }'e.lr 

Net increue/decre.:lse 

D, SCitOuLlxtJow it the llm.oUU1of t~ve.D.U.c n!c~~ed Cmm: 

Particulars As a' 
Ju, Man:h, 2022 

Amount mcluded in contract h;lbtlities :It the beginnin g. of the \ 

Perform.mce obli~.lrlOn s,ltistied in Dre vious \e.lrS 

E, Pe rformance obligation 

lnfounation about the Company's pecfomunce obligations ;are summarised below: 

(R.<. in ern ... ) 

As., 
31s, Much, 2021 

(RI! . in croft:) 

Aut 
31s, March, 2021 

ll,e trJn~ jlccion prict' .lllocateu to thc rem;uning performance oblig,ltions (un.:;,Hislied or p.lrti,llly uns;ltisfied) .IS 

a[ 3 L ~Llfch are, as follow~: 

(Rs~ in croce) 

As.t As.t 
3il11 March, 2022 31s, March, 2021 

\Xi thin one ~ C,lf 

~[ore th,m one \C,lf to 1. ~ (,.lrS 

Total 

/ 

-
--
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 iliiOOGJIL 
Note:- 35 Leases 

a) Company as a Lessee 

The Company as a lessee has entered into two lease contracts, for office space and guest house. Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company 
classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. 
These leases are in nature of short term leases or low value leases and are operating leases. 

Right of Use Assets 

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year is Nil. 

Lease Liabilities 

Set out below are the carrying amounts oflease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year: 

Balance at Aprill, 2019 

Addition 

Accredition of interest 

Payments 

Balance at March 31, 2020 

Current 

Non-current 

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 

Expense relating to short-term and low value leases (Refer Note 18) 

b) Company as a Lessor 

0.00 

0.00 

(Rs. in crole) 

For th year undc!d 
31st March 2022 

0.03 

0.03 

Po~ dte~ 
!fllded J!lSt 
MunihZOll 

0.03 

0.03 

The Company has given a demarcated area adjacent to the Toll Road, within the terms of the Service Concession Arrangement with NHAI, on Lease 
for a Petrol Pump to be operated by Hindustan Petroleum Company Limited ( HPCL ) and Lease and operations of Rest Area to Synergy Engineers 
Group Private Limited. An amount ofRs 0.17 Crores (Rs 0.16 Crores) had accrued from HPCL and Rs 0.18 Crores (Rs 0.16 Crores) from Synergy as 
Lease rentals. 

Future nlinimum re-nUlIs rccei"Vable under non-gwccllable opera:ti.ng leases is as follows: 

Within one year 

After one year but not more than five years 

More than five years 

A:s1l1 

31-M'ar-22 

0.38 

1.08 

2.40 

3.86 

(Rs. in croce) 

As-ol 

3J.-MM-ll 

0.35 

1.24 

2.62 

4.21 -----
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna ToUway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 ifijons§tl 
Note:- 36 Information in respect of dues to Micro and SmaU Enterprises as required hy Micro, SmaU and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) 

eRa in erore) 

S Pmcuttl15 /u ", 3hIMlu 
A.~ 1 3li1t larl021 o. 2022 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year: 

- -
1 Principal amount due to micro an~ small enterprises 

- · 
[nterest due on above 

- · 
The amount ofinte.estpaid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the 

2 payment made to the suppliec beyond the appointed day during each accoWlting year 

- · 
The amOWlt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 

3 appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006 

- -
4 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 
. · 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding yeus, until such date when the interest dues 

5 
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 
of the MSMED Act 2006 

- -

j ~-
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Notc;-37 
[reOD Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited 

Additional regulatory inromaation 

Disclosure of ratios 

Particuilin Numerator Denominator Man:h 31, 2022 Man:h 31, 2021 -/. chlnge Reason ror change more than 2S°/e 

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 
The reason for decrease in the ratio is 

010 0_17 -4143% 
on account of lower cash and cash 
equivalent on Balance sheet date, 
however the ratios draws comfort 
due lower current debt re[layments. 

Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Sharehold..-' 5 

Eouity 
810 713 13 58% NA 

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for deb~ Debt service -
service ~ Nel Interest & Lease The reason for increase in the ratio is 
profit after taxes Payments + on account of lower quarterly loan 
+ Non-cash Principal I 86 103 8055% 

repayments by the company and 
operating Repayments lower losses 
expenses 

Return on equity ratio Net Profits after Average 
taxes - Shareholder', 
Preference Equity 

-018 -017 -220% NA 

IDividend 
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods 

sold 
Average Inventory 

NA NA NA NA 

Trade receivables turnover ratio Net credit sales Average Tl1lde 
Gross credit sales 
- sales return 

Receivable 099 I 17 -]534% NA 

Trade payable turnover ratio Net credil Average Trade 
purchases ~ Payables 
Gross credil 634 000 NA NA 
purchases ~ 

nureba,. r"hlm 
Net capital turnover ratio Net sales - Total Working capital ~ 

sales - sales Current assets - The change in the ratio is on account 

,return Current liabilities -<501 -3 16 -9031% of increase in Service concession 
contract revenue due to the execution 

of SlauIlToll works 
Net profit ratio Net Profit Net sales - Total 

sales - sales return Net profit ratio has improved on 

-0.08 -0.13 34.0L% 
account of Increased Toll Collections 
resutling in better absorption of 
overheads and fixed costs as 
com oared to [!reviQUS vc:ar. 

Return on capital employed Earnings before Capital Employed ~ The change in th is ratio is on account 

interest and taxes Tangible Net Worth of better EBIT and also increase in 

+ Total Debt + -I 12 -308 6J 71% Intangible assets under development 

Deferred Tax due 10 execution of stage II Toll 

iLiahil ilv works. 
Retun on investment Interest (Finance Investment 

Income) NA NA NA NA 

ii The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic especially on account of second wave of the pandemic, remains unclear at present as on reporting date Hence, it is not possible to reliably estimate the 
duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results of the Company for future periods. However, Ihe company is protected by the clauses 29 6 of the 
Concession Agreement to claim such loss under force majeure event in the fonn of revenue loss compensation by way of extension of the concession period, The impact of the lockdown disruption! 
COVID-19 pandemic will have to be assessed from time to time and communicated as we progress during the current financial year. A lot depends on the success of the various pandemic containment 
efforts being undertaken by the State and Central Governments and Health authorities. It is therefore premature to forecast the future impact with credibility at this stage. 

iii The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year 
iv The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 
v The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intennediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like 10 or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

vi The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whelher recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company 
shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

vii The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP and other related parties, 
viii The Company docs not have any changes in accounting policy or prior period errors 

ix The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property 

x The Company does not have any title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company 
xi Company is not required to submit statement of current asselS with the bank and therefore reconcilation of the statement filed by the company with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable. 

xii The Company does not have any investment property , 
xiii The Company has not revalued any item of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Asset 
xiv The Company does not have any transactions where the company has not used the borrowings from banks and financial institulions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date 

xv The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been subsequently surrendered or disclosed as income during the year as part of the on going tax 
assessmenlS under the Income T3.'I( Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions or the Income Tax Act, 1961). 
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Ircon Shivpuri Guna ToUway Umited 

iliiOOGIN Notes to Financial StatemenlS for the year ended 31st March 2022 

Note:-

Note:-

38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR) 

The Company is not cove<ed uoder section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no CSR expenditw:e has been incuned during the period 

39 Other discloswes 

a) 

b) 

c) 

Some of the balances shown under debtors, advances and creditolS are subject to confinnation / reconciliation/ adjustmeo~ if any. The Company has been sending lettelS 
for confumation to parties. However, the does not ""peet any mateDal dispute w.r.t the recovembility/payment of the S2me. 

In the opinion of the managemen~ the value of =t assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinary cou ... of business, will not be less than the ruue at which 
these ace stated in the balance sheet 

Certain poor periods amouots ha"" been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations. These a:classifications have no effect on the reported cesults of 
operations. Also, previous year figures are shown undu d:ct 0 to differentiate from cuccent year figures. 

F OT P. R. KUMAR & Co. ~"~~&:-
Director p Dm .... """ $: M o.Il. 3. 

(Rlachn. T Ohtol) (Iti Matta) M. N o. SQIGJ5 

~0 
(Atul Kumar) 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Fmancial Officer Company Secretary 

Date: () ).bJ..-l--Place f7r D~j 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
sEcTtoN 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPAN|ES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANC|AL
STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statemenls of lrcon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financiar reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management
of the company. The statutory Auditor appointed by the comptroler and Auditor cenerar
of lndia under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in

accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act.
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 17 May 2022.

l, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of lndia, have conducled a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of lrcon Shivpuri cuna Tollway Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2022 und..I, Section .143(6) (a) ofthe Act. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independenfly without access to the working papers of the
StatutoryAuditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory
Auditor's report under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of lndia

Ul,*, I
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.08.2022 - 

ct2.o
Vikram D. M ara,

Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commerciat, New Delhi
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